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About

AP Rentals
BRI EAEE

We are a leading equipment rental service company in Hong Kong with the capability of

providing a wide range of construction, E&M engineering and Event and Entertainment
equipment, equipment rental-related solutions and value-added services to our customers.
We serve a diverse range of customers including leading construction and E&M engineering
projects and large scale Event and Entertainment activities. Our rental equipment principally
covers power and energy equipment, high-reach equipment, material handling equipment and
other equipment (include lifting, earth moving, foundation, road and transportation, tunneling,
demolition and small equipment.)
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Chairman’s Statement

T E S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (“AP Rentals” or the “Company”), | hereby present
the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the twelve months ended 31
March 2016. This is the Group’s first annual report published since its
listing on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

2016 is a year of strategic importance to the Group. The listing of AP
Rentals on 8 April 2016 has opened a new chapter for the Group’s
business development. As a leading equipment rental-related solution
provider in Hong Kong, the Group provides equipment rental-related
solutions and value-added services to customers. It is also a top and
one among the few companies in Hong Kong and Macau which can
offer a wide range of equipment and comprehensive equipment
rental-related solutions. AP Rentals has won the hearts of customers
over the years and is deemed a preferred partner by many of its
customers. The proceeds from the public offering will be used in
promoting the Group’s future business development, enabling it to
capture the immense growth potential in the equipment rental
industry.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 (“FY2016"), the Group had a total
revenue of approximately HK$239.3 million, representing an increase
of 4.9% over the revenue of approximately HK$228.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (“FY2015”). The profit attributable to
owners of the Company (“Net Profit”) was approximately HK$20.9
million for FY2016 (FY2015: approximately HK$42.9 million), which
was mainly affected by the listing expenses of approximately HK$21.3
million. The Group’s administrative expenses increased to
approximately HK$27.9 million (FY2015: approximately HK$21.4
million), representing an increase of approximately 30.2% over last
year. Such increase was mainly due to higher staff cost from
employing more quality staff, professional fees, audit fee and
directors’ emoluments. Nevertheless, they were aimed at enhancing
the quality of our Group in long run. The decline in Net Profit was
approximately 51.3%. If the listing expenses of approximately
HK$21.3 million were excluded, the Net Profit would amount to
approximately HK$42.2 million. Please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” for details of the Group’s
business performance for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement

T E S

The construction industry in Hong Kong and Macau has been
flourishing and growing rapidly in the past few years, and the Group
has been involved in a number of large infrastructure projects. Also,
the fact that a series of large development projects such as the “Ten
Major Infrastructure Projects” are going to commence, be expedited,
or be completed is presenting opportunities to the construction
sector and in turn fuelling demand for related equipment. The gradual
kick-off of more infrastructure projects in the future will continue to
drive the demand for construction engineering expertise and local
equipment rental. As such, we believe that the launching of more
infrastructure projects, and our power in providing sound rental
solutions, shall improve the demand for construction rental equipment
in Hong Kong, which would ultimately benefit our revenues.

Today, the Group has the support of major suppliers with whom it
has built solid long-term relationship. For example, the Group began
to cooperate with its strategic shareholder and business partner
Kanamoto Co., Ltd (“Kanamoto Japan”) in 2009. Kanamoto Japan
and Kanamoto (HK) Co., Ltd (“Kanamoto Hong Kong”) have made
available to the Group approximately 1,700 pieces of rental
equipment, which has allowed the Group to provide the best
equipment to suit customers’ requirements. Capitalising on the strong
relationship with major suppliers and its broad customer base, the
Group has a firm foundation for expansion and growing its business
in the long term.

10 AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

T E S

The construction industry in Hong Kong is developing rapidly and it is
expected that the demand for rental equipment will increase as a
result. To meet the expected growth in market demand, the Group
has adopted an effective and flexible fleet management strategy. As
disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”), the utilisation rate of the Group’s equipment with
age of five years or less has been generally higher than that for
equipment with age of over five years, illustrating the market demand
and preference for such relatively new equipment. Through expanding
and strengthening the Group’s rental fleet, it strives to enhance
utilisation rate and continue to gain ground in the equipment rental
market with tremendous growth potential. The expansion and
strengthening of the Group’s rental fleet, which involves purchasing
more equipment of higher environmental and quality standards, will
help boost the effectiveness of the Group’s fleet operation and
enhance the efficiency and quality of the Group’s equipment rental
service. In May this year, the Group for the first time launched a boom
lift with the world’s tallest reach, an all-terrain crane with the longest
boom among products of the same kind and a compact spider crane
with strong lifting power. The Group aims to optimise the size and
makeup of its equipment fleet so that it may provide more innovative
and diverse choices to customers in the construction industry.

As for the Macau market, taking into account the slowdown in the
local construction industry recently, the Group has transferred some
of the fleet equipment to its projects in Hong Kong to enhance the
utilisation rate of its equipment. The Group continues to monitor
economic conditions in Macau and implement flexible effective fleet
management strategies to address the changing market environment
and trends.
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Chairman’s Statement

T E S

12

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to focus on seizing the
enormous potential in the Hong Kong market. Large transportation
infrastructure projects such as the Shatin to Central Link, the Tuen
Mun Western Bypass and Tuen Mun-Chek Lap Kok Link, the third
runway project at the Hong Kong International Airport at Chek lap
Kok and the Kai Tak Development Plan will be strong drivers of
demand for equipment rental and foster the development of Hong
Kong’s construction engineering sector. As disclosed in the
Prospectus, the market size of the construction equipment rental
market in Hong Kong is expected to grow noticeably. The Hong Kong
Legislative Council has recently approved the additional funding
request for constructing the Express Rail Hong Kong section and the
Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge Hong Kong Boundary Crossing
Facilities — Reclamation and Superstructures. Construction of related
projects is currently underway. Equipment offered by the Group has
been used in the two above-mentioned large-scale infrastructure
projects and related income is expected to be reflected in the second
half of the year ending 31 March 2017.

With the Group boasting unique competitive advantages, a well-
established all-round business model, an excellent industry reputation
and solid relationship with major suppliers and customers, the
management is confident of capturing the emerging opportunities in
the Hong Kong and Macau equipment rental markets.

AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016

BERK  AEEREBEZ NICEEETHNE
REREN - PEZEFRE - HPIAEEE R
EREAEER  FEATBEERMSE =GN
BIEE - UREEERFESSEAAERERIER
R AEBSEREL AT RNETERE  RER
BEETRITENER - ROBRERHAEE -
BB RZEWM A MISE ™SR K E R RS
E-mRVEERIECHERRERERERESR
HEBERMBKBRABEEBERE — BF
RAFHRBOFEIMNERESR - BRAIBEEREMA
BT o AEEIRHARMEIRE ER R Lt Ex
AERIBE - MABWATES BREE 201743
R31BIEFEO T HFREEK -

BRALEBAENEBFEY TERA2NEER
A FHNTERERETIEHERRTFHNIE
fRRAR  BEEEBREAREENERTELRMR
TSRS AR # o



Chairman’s Statement

T E S

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board and the management, |
would like to thank the entire staff for their untiring efforts during the
year, as well as the strong support from shareholders. | would also
like to thank our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers and
business partners for their backing. We will continue to fortify AP
Rental’s leadership in the equipment rental industry, realise
sustainable growth and generate satisfactory returns for shareholders.

Mr. Lau Pong Sing
Chairman; Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
28 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R am B AT

GROUP OVERVIEW

The Group is a leading equipment rental service company in Hong
Kong. The principal activities of the Group encompass the provision
of equipment rental-related solutions and value-added services to
customers. The Group owns and maintains a strong rental fleet of
over 1,300 units of equipment and also rents equipment from its
suppliers, mainly from its shareholder and strategic partner,
Kanamoto Co., Ltd (“Kanamoto Japan”), which is one of the leading
construction equipment rental groups in Japan. Leveraging on the
Group’s competitive strengths, the Group strives to lead the industry
using its ability to provide a wide range of well-maintained equipment
supplemented by various equipment rental solutions. The Group
serves a diverse range of customers in Hong Kong and Macau and
has established stable and long-term relationships with major
customers.

Weltomes ine"l:TéTiF_fg'éi' N
AP Rentals Holdings Limited
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(St?ck Code: 1496)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E A m B AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

2016 is an important year for the Group. To facilitate the Group’s
future growth, the Company was successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 8 April 2016 (the “Listing Date”). The
successful listing is a major milestone in the Group’s development
and will provide the Group a platform for further expansion.

During the year under review, the Hong Kong economy managed to
record modest growth, despite a volatile global market with
uncertainty surrounding the US monetary policies and the stock
market. Although there was a slowdown in GDP growth in Hong
Kong recently, investments increased in both the public and private
sectors, including the infrastructure sector. As such, the construction
industry in Hong Kong reported moderate growth, and that in turn
boosted demand for equipment rental.

The Group has been providing equipment and rental solutions to
various public projects in Hong Kong, including those among the “Ten
Major Infrastructure Projects”, namely the Shatin to Central Link, the
Tuen Mun Western Bypass and Tuen Mun Chek Lap Kok Link, Kai
Tak Development Plan, New Development Areas, Hong Kong-
Shenzhen Airport Cooperation, Hong Kong Shenzhen Joint
Development of the Lok Ma Chau Loop, South Island Line, West
Kowloon Cultural District, the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Express Rail Link and Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macau Bridge. Despite that
some of these projects have experienced delay in commencement or
completion schedule, the Group’s financial results had not been
adversely affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R am B AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

The Group recorded stable revenue for the year ended 31 March
2016 (“FY2016”), which increased by approximately 4.9% to
approximately HK$239.3 million as compared with revenue of
approximately HK$228.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2015
(“FY2015”). The Group’s gross profit was up by approximately 10.8%
from approximately HK$69.3 million in FY2015 to approximately
HK$76.8 million in FY2016, with gross profit margin at approximately
32.1% (FY2015: approximately 30.4%). The Group’s net profit
decreased by approximately 51.3% from approximately HK$42.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$20.9
million for the year ended 31 March 2016. The decrease in net profit
was mainly due to the listing expenses of approximately HK$21.3
million incurred during the year. Before deducting the listing expenses
of approximately HK$21.3 million, the Group would have recorded
net profit of approximately HK$42.2 million (FY2015: approximately
HK$42.9 million).
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Macau
o
18.1%

Hong Kong
5
81.9%

GROSS PROFIT NET PROFIT
EX AR
(I?PES%OOO% (HK$'000)
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90,000 35% 45,000 18.8% 17.6%"
32.1% A-\A
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31 March 2015 31 March2016
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For the financial year ended
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[0 Gross Profit [ Gross Profit Margin
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For the financial year ended
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. Net Profit . Net Profit Margin
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* Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the year represents
reported profit attributable to owners of the Company before deducting
one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$21.27 million for the year ended
31 March 2016.
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18 AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016

%
20%

15%

10%

5%

0%



Management Discussion and Analysis
Yarian LA
EIRE R DT

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

0)

Rental income of machinery

During the year under review, the Group’s rental income from
rental services, which involved the rental of construction,
electrical and mechanical engineering and event and
entertainment equipment in Hong Kong and Macau, increased
by approximately 6.3% to approximately HK$171.8 million for
FY2016 (FY2015: approximately HK$161.7 million). Rental
income from rental services accounted for approximately 71.8%
of the Group’s total revenue for FY2016. As demand for the
Group’s equipment increased during the year under review due
to the continued progress of construction projects in Hong
Kong and Macau, the Group’s rental income increased during

the year.

Ya

)

—_

)

ikl
HA S WA

REBEE AEEXREHERBEHHES
WA - IR RIEE S RORPT AR RS -
T TR RIEE) IR EE R A - 7R 2016 BF IR
FEEHH63%EX171.8 8 EE (2015
MHREE - 161 788BL) - KB LA
BRTS B FE © IR A MG AN £ [ 2016 B B 4F & 42
WE4I71.8% © BEE AL BRI RET KB
REBRRPIREEBFEER MR FE
FEEE  AEENESWARFEREGI -

HAVD IN,

S

TERRFER/ DEBEERERERAA

19



Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R am B AT

SEGMENT ANALYSIS (Continued)

(i)  Operating service income
The Group offers equipment operating services in Hong Kong
by sending equipment operators to operate the equipment at
the job sites of its customers. For the year ended 31 March
2016, revenue from equipment operating services increased by
approximately 20.1% to approximately HK$20.3 million
(FY2015: approximately HK$16.9 million), and accounted for
approximately 8.5% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2016. The increase in operating service
income was attributable to the higher demand for experienced
operators to work at job sites.

(i) Other service income

The Group’s other service income, which arise from rental
arrangements including repair, maintenance and technical
support services during the rental period, decreased slightly
during the year and amounted to approximately HK$10.3 million
for the year ended 31 March 2016 (FY2015: approximately
HK$11.1 million). The Group’s other service income accounted
for approximately 4.3% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
under review.

(iv) Sales of machinery and spare parts

To complement the Group’s equipment rental solutions, the
Group sources new and used equipment and spare parts from
different suppliers for on-selling to customers. Revenue from
sales of machinery and spare parts amounted to approximately
HK$37.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2016 (FY2015:
approximately HK$38.5 million), which accounted for
approximately 15.4% of the Group’s total revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

%:'EE njL Eﬁf\?rﬁ

PROSPECTS

The growth in the construction industry in Hong Kong is expected to
be driven by a number of major infrastructure projects. The ones
among the “Ten Major Infrastructure Projects” that are on-going or
will commence have brought and will present opportunities to the
construction sector, and in turn fuel demand for related equipment
and drive the Group’s rental services and trading businesses. In
addition, the expected commencement of major infrastructure
projects such as the Third Runway of the Hong Kong International
Airport, and the Tseung Kwan O-Lam Tin Tunnel will add to the
demand for construction works and command an increase in capital
expenditure in the construction industry and equipment rental market.
In the event that an infrastructure project for the Central Kowloon
Route may commence, this may further add to the demand for
construction works, thereby further increasing the demand for rental
equipment.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The Group plans to exploit the exciting growth environment by
expanding its rental fleet by purchasing additional equipment and
actively managing its fleet. In particular, the Group intends to
purchase more equipment with higher environmental and quality
standard, for allowing more efficient operation and to comply with
increasingly stringent environmental standards. More importantly, the
Group will be able to offer a wider range of equipment to its
customers. In May 2016, the Group brought in self-propelled boom
lifts with the world’s tallest reach at 185 ft., an all-terrain crane which
works well under poor weather conditions. Among same grade all-
terrain cranes, it has the longest boom length of 52 meters, and
hence is capable of higher and farther lifting. The crane can be used
in a variety of environments such as for installation works at
construction sites, commercial buildings and outdoor works. The
other new equipment —
It can be used in different settings such as shopping malls,
warehouses, factories and airports. The versatile spider lift can

the spider lift, boasts unrivalled lifting power.

simplify labour-intensive lifting operations, expedite the process and
reduce incidents of injury. The Group plans to expand and enhance
its rental fleet and is determined to gain an even bigger share of the
equipment rental market that has promising growth potential.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The Group aims to further enhance its efficiency and the quality of its
equipment rental service by improving its equipment maintenance
facilities and installing a GPS equipment monitoring system. The latter
can help identify potential problems with equipment before they
surface, and thus can potentially enhance cost efficiency, reduce
equipment down time, improve the quality of equipment servicing and
maintenance, and boost the overall quality of the Group’s equipment
rental service. The Group also intends to purchase additional vehicles
for transporting the equipment. Furthermore, with a view to expanding
and enhancing its rental fleet, apart from introducing the self-
propelled boom lift with the world’s tallest reach, the spider lift with
stronger lifting power, diesel generators with higher emission standard
and some smaller size’s boom lifts since April 2016, our Group will, (i)
purchase new equipment to replace obsolete equipment as part of
our ordinary fleet management, (i) purchase new equipment with
higher emission standards than the existing equipment, in order to
satisfy market demand and requirements under the Air Pollution
Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation (Chapter
311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong) which became effective in
September 2015, and (i) purchase a new line of lifting equipment
including mobile cranes. All along, meticulous focus on employee
training and service standards will keep the Group at the forefront of
professionalism.

Looking ahead, drawing on the Group’s unique competitive edges
and the abundant operating experience of its management team, the
Group will strive to lead the industry with its offer of high-quality
equipment, premium service and equipment solutions and also seize
emerging opportunities in the growing equipment rental industry.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded moderate
growth in revenue of approximately HK$11.1 million, with the total
revenue reaching approximately HK$239.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2016, representing an increase of approximately 4.9% as
compared to the total revenue of approximately HK$228.2 million for
the year ended 31 March 2015. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in the Group’s rental income from machinery.

For details, please see the discussion on the Group’s segmental
performance in the section headed “Segment Analysis” above.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$162.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2016, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 2.3% (FY2015: approximately
HK$158.9 million). Cost of sales mainly comprised machinery hiring
expenses, staff costs for the Group’s equipment operators,
technicians and truck drivers, costs for machinery and parts for
trading and depreciation, which together accounted for approximately
88.1% of the Group’s total cost of sales in FY2016.

Among the four major items under cost of sales, the Group recorded
a slight decrease of approximately 5.0% in machinery hiring expenses
during the year under review, owing to the decrease in demand for
relatively older rented machines from the market. Staff costs
increased substantially by approximately 18.9% due to an increase in
the demand for the Group’s operators by the market. The increase in
the wages was caused by the increase in headcount and annual
salary increment during the year ended 31 March 2016. Depreciation
increased by approximately 27.1% year-on-year mainly due to new
additions of plant and machinery as a result of the expansion of the
Group’s owned fleet. Costs for machinery and parts decreased by
approximately 18.6% due to the decline in sales of our machinery
while the sales of our spare parts increased.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit increased by approximately 10.8%
from approximately HK$69.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2015 to approximately HK$76.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2016. The increase in gross profit was in line with the growth of the
Group’s revenue. The Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
32.1% for the year ended 31 March 2016 (FY2015: approximately
30.4%).

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2016, administrative expenses
amounted to approximately HK$27.9 million (FY2015: approximately
HK$21.4 million), representing an increase of approximately 30.2%
over last year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
due to higher staff cost, professional fees, audit fee and directors’
emoluments.

Listing Expenses
The Group recognised listing expenses of approximately HK$21.3
million during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Finance cost

Finance costs comprised interest on the Group’s borrowings and
finance leases, which amounted to approximately HK$1.7 million for
FY2016 (FY2015: approximately HK$1.1 million). The increase was
attributable to an increase of borrowings during the year under
review.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year
The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$20.9 million for
the year ended 31 March 2016 (FY2015: approximately HK$42.9
million), representing a net profit margin of approximately 8.7%
(FY2015: approximately 18.8%). The decrease in net profit was
mainly due to the listing expenses of approximately HK$21.3 million
incurred during the year. Before deducting the listing expenses of
approximately HK$21.3 million, the Group’s net profit and net profit
margin for the year ended 31 March 2016 would be approximately
HK$42.2 million (the “Adjusted FY2016 Profit”) and approximately
17.6%, respectively. The Adjusted FY2016 Profit was comparable to
the net profit of approximately HK$42.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2015.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditures during the year under review
primarily comprised expenditures on plant and machinery, leasehold
improvements and motor vehicles, amounting to a total of
approximately HK$81.1 million (FY2015: approximately HK$69.4
million). The vast majority of the capital expenditures were used to
fund the expansion of the Group’s owned rental fleet of machinery,
which accounted for approximately 93.7% of the total capital
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Liquidity and Financial Resources Review

The Group financed its operations through a combination of cash
flow from operations, borrowings and finance leases. As at 31 March
2016, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$22.3 million (31 March 2015: approximately HK$27.9 million) that
were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen and
MOP, and had borrowings and obligations under finance leases of
approximately HK$75.7 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$29.8 million) that were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$128.6 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$81.0 million), of which approximately HK$72.0 million (31 March
2015: approximately HK$25.3 million) had been drawn down, and
approximately HK$56.6 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$55.7 million) were unutilised.

As at 31 March 2016, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 44.4% (2015: approximately 1.8%), which was
calculated based on the net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
defined as the sum of the borrowings, bank overdraft and obligations
under finance leases, minus the cash and cash equivalents.

Going forward, the Group expects to fund its future operations and
expansion plans primarily with cash generated from operations,
borrowings and the net proceeds received by the Company through
listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in currencies
which are different from the functional currencies of the Group,
namely, Hong Kong Dollars, and therefore the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk. Payments made by the Group for the
settlement of its purchases from suppliers are generally denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen, Euro and US Dollars. Payments
received by the Group from its customers are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and MOP.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its exposure to
currency movement and take proactive measures.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(81 March 2015: Nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies

Apart from the re-organisation as disclosed in the Prospectus, there
were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associates during the year ended 31 March 2016.

Significant Investments
As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not hold any significant
investments.

Capital Commitments and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has capital commitments of
approximately HK$1.8 million (31 March 2015: approximately HK$1.0
million), to acquire plant and equipment for the Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus and the section headed “Prospects”
above for details of the future plans of the Group in relation to material
investments and/or capital assets.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy of approximately HK$2.5
million as at 31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: approximately HK$2.4
million), plant and machinery of approximately HK$62.3 million as at
31 March 2016 (31 March 2015: approximately HK$28.3 million) have
been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings of approximately
HK$75.2 million (31 March 2015: approximately HK$27.6 million).

Human Resources and Employees’ Remuneration
As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 146 employees (31 March
2015: 114 employees), of which 138 employees are in Hong Kong (31
March 2015: 110 employees) and 8 employees are in Macau (31
March 2015: 4 employees). Employees’ remuneration packages are
determined with reference to the market information and individual
performance and will be reviewed on a regular basis. The
remuneration policy will be reviewed by the Board from time to time.
In addition to basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical
insurance, make contributions to provident funds and provides other
benefits to the employees. The total staff cost (including remuneration,
other benefits and contributions to retirement schemes for the
directors of the Company and other staff of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016 amounted to approximately HK$42.3 million
(2015: approximately HK$33.8 million). The increase in staff cost was
mainly due to increase in emoluments of the directors of the
Company, increase in headcount and salary increment during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group’s technical staff attend seminars jointly conducted by
manufacturers and the Group to acquire product knowledge to
ensure they are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to
perform their duties. Such seminars include training regarding the
equipment structures, operational features, operator safety training
and equipment repair. In addition to the training jointly conducted by
manufacturers and the Group, the Group’s technical staff also attend
external training courses and obtained relevant certificates.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.
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FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 4 B B

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-XRE —T—FHF —E—F —T—=
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Results E FET FET FET FHT
Revenue Wz
Leasing income of HH AR AR U
machinery 171,777 161,660 143,657 119,422
Sales of machinery and Mt N T E
parts 36,957 38,530 46,444 17,982
Operating service income K RS U 20,329 16,926 19,295 16,404
Other service income H b RIS B 10,278 11,109 8,553 5,943
239,341 228,225 217,949 159,751
Gross profit EF 76,828 69,321 61,693 53,313
Other income Ebug A 2,552 2,065 1,152 1,087
Other gains and (losses) Hap ez & (FR) 494 2,625 3,172 (446)
Profit before taxation B FL A A 29,030 51,472 47,541 42,264
Income tax expense FRiSHi =2 (8,107) (8,547) (7,416) (6,967)
Profit and total comprehensive 7z~ 4F [ 3 | &
income for the year 2HEUREARRE 20,923 42,925 40,125 35,297
Per share data sRER
Earnings per share — BRAN —
basic (HK cents) EAR (L) 2.94 6.02 5.63 4.95
Financial ratios Bt =
Gross profit margin E = 32.1% 30.4% 28.3% 33.4%
Net profit margin AR & 8.7% 18.8% 18.4% 22.1%
Return on total assets BEERRE 7.5% 18.1% 22.3% 33.2%
Return on equity i EE B 17.4% 38.8% 45.8% 61.1%
Current ratio BN 0.77 0.89 0.99 1.47
Assets and Liabilities EENARE
Total assets BEE 279,071 237,471 180,318 106,278
Total liabilities BEE (158,579) (126,902) (92,674) (48,492)
Total Equity BT 120,492 110,569 87,644 57,786
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REVENUE (HK$ Milion)

22 b f—
K= (BEBT)
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PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
(HKS Million)

ARRERAREER (BEET)
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Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the year represents reported profit attributable to owners of the Company

before deducting one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$21.27 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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FINANCIAL RATIOS Bt #& &
GROSS PROFIT MARGIN (%) NET PROFIT MARGIN (%)
EMR(%) FRZ (%)

35.0% 33.4% 25.0% 29-1%
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15.0% \k\ ~~~~ A 30.0% B
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Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the year represents reported profit attributable to owners of the Company
before deducting one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$21.27 million for the year ended 31 March 2016.
* REFA M R 2R ARENHIBREZ 2016 F3 A31 BIEFE — XM FHX421.27 A 8B ITATZ AR AR AEIERF) o
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 June
2015 as an exempted company with limited liability. Pursuant to the
reorganisation arrangements undertaken by the Group in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the
Company became the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group. For details of the group reorganisation, please
refer to the section headed “History and Development” in the
Prospectus issued by the Company. The shares of the Company
have been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1496) since 8 April 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of equipment rental-
related solutions and value-added services to customers. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$93.1 million (2015: HK$83.2 million).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2016
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to
148 of this annual report.

Before the shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange, an interim dividend of HK40 cents per share on
27,378,000 shares of the Company (2015: 2015 interim dividend —
HK73 cents per share on 27,378,000 shares of AP Rentals Limited)
was declared in December 2015 and was fully paid in February 2016.
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section on pages 8 to 15 and on pages 16 to 28 of this
annual report respectively.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

The equipment rental industry is cyclical in general and its revenues
are tied to general economic conditions and to conditions in the
construction and electrical and mechanical engineering (“E&M” or
“E&M engineering”) industry in particular. Our products and services
are used primarily in construction projects which is cyclical and
sensitive to changes in general economic conditions. Weakness in
our end-markets, such as a decline in construction and E&M
engineering activity, may decrease the demand for the Group’s
equipment or the rental rates or prices that the Group can charge.
Factors that may cause weakness in our end-markets include:

(i) weakness in economic growth in Hong Kong and in Macau or
the onset of a new recession;

(i)  slowdown in the expansion of the construction industry in Hong
Kong and Macau where we operate;

(i) increase in the cost of construction materials and labour costs;
(iv) increases in interest rates; and
(v)  adverse changes in the government infrastructure spending.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks facing
the Group are set out in note 27 and note 28 to the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
and the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Foreign Exchange Risk” on page 27 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Four Year
Financial Summary and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review” on pages 29 to 31 and on pages
24 to 28 of this annual report respectively. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, if any, can also be found in the
above sections of this annual report and notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment. In terms of environmental friendliness, we have obtained
the Quality Powered Mechanical Equipment (“QPME”) identification
for most of our rental equipment to which the QPME system is
applicable, and we have filed application for all our equipment which
are subject to the Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery)
(Emission) Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“NRMM” Regulation), and have obtained the NRMM label for most of
such equipment.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation
with its business partners. The Company provides a fair and safe
workplace, promotes diversity to our staff, provides competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their merits and performance. The Group also puts ongoing
efforts to provide adequate trainings and development resources to
the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.

The Group provides a wide range of construction, E&M engineering
and event and entertainment equipment, equipment rental-related
solutions and value-added services to customers. The Group
maintains good working relationships between the Group and the
customers. The Group enhances the relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products so that the Group can respond
proactively.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its suppliers
and service providers, including our strategic partner and our
shareholder, Kanamoto Japan, and our key suppliers. In order to
have better and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the
Group’s management conducts performance review regularly
targeting the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last four financial years are set out on pages 29 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the
Company.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$56,000 (FY2015: HK$NIL).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group has adopted a share option scheme on 17 March 2016
(the “Share Option Scheme”). Share options may be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. From the
date of the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this annual report, no share option has been granted, or agreed to
be granted, under the Share Option Scheme. Set forth below are the
details of the Share Option Scheme:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
(@ The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that Eligible Participants (as defined below)
had made or may make to the Group.

(b) The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company with the view to achieving the
following principal objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(©)

For the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, “Eligible
Participant” means any person who satisfies the eligibility
criteria in paragraph 2 below.

2. Who may join and basis for determining
eligibility

(@)

The Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

In order for a person to satisfy the Board that he/she/it is
qualified to be (or, where applicable, continues to qualify
to be) an Eligible Participant, such person shall provide all
such information as the Board may request for the
purpose of assessing his/her/its eligibility (or continuing
eligibility).

Each grant of options to a connected person (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of his
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), must be
approved in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

Should the Board resolve that a grantee fails/has failed or
otherwise is/has been unable to meet the continuing
eligibility criteria under the Share Option Scheme, the
Company would (subject to any relevant laws and
regulations) be entitled to deem any outstanding option or
part thereof, granted to such grantee and to the extent
not already exercised, as lapsed, subject to certain
requirements (the details of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV of
the Prospectus).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) AR )
3. Maximum number of shares of the Company 3. AMEEITAARQRIRRMD ([ARGKD )

(“Shares”) available for issue

(@  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. No options may be granted under any schemes of
the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this
will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

(b) The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes involving the issue or
grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other
securities by the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Listing Date, and such 10% limit represents 86,400,000
Shares. 86,400,000 Shares represents 10% of the total
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Share Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in the twelve-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% in
aggregate of the issued share capital of our Company as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further share options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements provided under
the Listing Rules.

Time of exercise of option

(@) Subject to certain restrictions contained in the Share
Option Scheme, an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the
applicable option period, which is not more than ten years
from the date of grant of option.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRE @
5. Time of exercise of option (Continued) 5 MREITHERR @

(o)  There is no general requirement on the minimum period
for which an option must be held or the performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
However, at the time of granting any option, the Board
may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject
to such conditions, restrictions or limitations including
(without limitation) those in relation to the minimum period
of the options to be held and/or the performance targets
to be achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

Consideration for share options and the
exercise price

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day within ten
years commencing on the effective date of the Share Option
Scheme to offer the grant of an option to any Eligible Participant
as the Board may in its absolute discretion select in accordance
with the eligibility criteria set out in the Share Option Scheme.
An offer shall be accepted when the Company receives the duly
signed offer letter together with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 (or such other sum in any currency as the Board may
determine).

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board and notified
to each grantee and shall be not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (i) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant option
and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant. The
exercise price shall also be subject to certain adjustments (the
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
Options may be granted to Eligible Participants under the Share
Option Scheme during the period of ten years commencing on
the effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages IV-12 to IV-22 in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate amount of turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are as follows:

10.9%
22.3%

The largest customer
The five largest customers in aggregate

The percentages of total purchases (defined as the sum of (i) the
Group’s total cost of sales less staff cost and depreciation and (i)
purchases of the Group’s owned rental equipment) for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

35.1%
65.5%

The largest supplier (Note 1)
The five largest suppliers in aggregate

Note 1:  Being Kanamoto (HK) Co., Limited (“Kanamoto HK”), the wholly

owned subsidiary of Kanamoto Japan, a company holding
approximately 7.5% of the shareholding of the Company as at the
date of this annual report.

At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholders of the Company, which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers except the above as disclosed.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
LAU Pong Sing (Chairman)
CHAN Kit Mui, Lina

(appointed on 11 June 2015)
(appointed on 11 June 2015)

Non-executive Director
Kitagawa Ken (appointed on 10 December 2015)
Independent non-executive Directors

Ho Chung Tai Raymond (appointed on 17 March 2016)
Siu Chak Yu (appointed on 17 March 2016)
Li Ping Chi (appointed on 17 March 2016)

Pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years. By virtue
of Articles 83 and 84 of the Articles, all the Directors, namely, Lau
Pong Sing , Chan Kit Mui, Lina, Kitagawa Ken, Ho Chung Tai
Raymond, Siu Chak Yu and Li Ping Chi will retire from office at the
2016 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 65 to 76 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the directors and chief executive
were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

EERRG - AEROREFTH

BENKXR

RAFRBE  EEREAQFRETMAEHAE
(EERBHRBEEHEXVE) EAORG -
B (D R EH P IRIEES KB EIEHIEXVE
F7 8D EAEME AN T T HES sA
B(BRERBEES RBEKRAIZZBRIERALE
EREELRERTRABBRAENERSRAR) -
SRR B 5 I B S (51) 28 352 15 B rL 85 R % 16 P
rE R M AR AR - SRR _E AR BIRT 8%
10FTEC EMETAZRETELFR HHIZLEST
B) (MZ2E<FA]) BN & AR F M 2 FraiEzs
KRBT

Approximate
Percentage of

Number of Total Issued
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares Shares (%)
BITRGOEEZ
EEfR EEME RGO A BRBED
Mr. Lau Pong Sing (Note 1, 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 363,528,000 (L) 42.08%
2UFBAK S A& (FIFET - 2) R EERER
Interest of spouse 284,471,352 (L) 32.92%
BB
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (Note 3, 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 284,471,352 (L) 32.92%
BRZMgA+ (53~ 4) A E R
Interest of spouse 363,528,000 (L) 42.08%
BB
Note 1:  The Company was directly owned as to 42.08% by New Club 31 : & 2 & HNew Club House International
House International Holdings Limited (“New Club House”). By virtue Holdings Limited ([ New Club House ]) E##
of his 100% shareholding in New Club House, Mr. Lau Pong Sing H 42.08% Hezs o BIFRK LRI E]D)
(“Mr. Lau”) is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares A % B New Club House H 100% P& i 15
held by New Club House. 1555 New Club House FT# #E[R 8B B% {5
G
Note 2:  Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (‘Ms. Chan”). Under 2 : BlscE afgigLt (it ) WiRiE -
the SFO, Mr. Lau is deemed to be interested in the same number of WBIEEAELEEED - REEWR BNR
Shares in which Ms. Chan is interested. LZHEAE AR E R DR IEEEZ -
Note 3:  The Company was directly owned as to 32.92% by Great Club P73 : Z & & g Great Club House Holdings
House Holdings Limited (“Great Club House”). By virtue of her 100% Limited ([ Great Club House|) & # # &
shareholding in Great Club House, Ms. Chan is deemed to be 32.92%# #x ° PR %2 1= A # A Great Club
interested in the same number of Shares held by Great Club House. House #J 100% & # M #5 13 / 72 Great Club
House FTF#ERI% B B fh R B = -
Note 4:  Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau. Under the SFO, Ms. Chan is  f{if4 @ A+ B21%EMES - BIEEERHE

deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.
Lau is interested.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As the Shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
8 April 2016, the Company was not required to keep any register
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at
31 March 2016.

Immediately following the listing of the Company, so far as the
directors are aware, the following persons (other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company), were directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the shares or short positions in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company, which are required to be disclosed
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
will be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, were as follows:

EARRRRORAEBRSGFHE

32z UK A
ﬁﬁ&/ﬁ)‘é

HRARA RN 20165F4 ASBRE T L1
HZE2016F3 A1 BAR A BAKEAMPE
1EBIEXVEBE 2 M FE 3D B FE M &M -

EEARR LR  BEERRM ATAL(E
ERARBTRARGIN ERLAMEEEAR
7156% 3 IA LB B s AR 2~ m Bt K AR R AR A0
RIEE S R EIEGAIEXVEBE 2 35 ARk R
TEH R TR 2R B IARIEFE 77 M HIE 1501 58 336 &
BREEZERMARERXRMT

Approximate
Percentage of

Total Number the Issued
Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest of Shares Held Share Capital
HERITRAK
RREB EEME Fris IR0 88 BRED T
New Club House' (Note 1) Beneficial interest 363,528,000 (L) 42.08%
New Club House' ({3 1) EnmEmn
Great Club House? (Note 2) Beneficial interest 284,471,352 (L) 32.92%
Great Club House? (3 2) BEnEn
Kanamoto Japan® (Note 3) Beneficial interest 64,800,648 (L) 7.5%
SARARS(HFE3) EnEn
Note 1: It is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Pong Sing. It is a controling ~ Mi3E1: HAZIBKEEEETERES - HARKAR
shareholder holding 363,528,000 shares of our Company. A7) 363,528,000 A A 17 FI 15 AR AR R ©
Note 2: It is directly wholly-owned by Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina. It is a W2 HARZELZTEHEEZAHES - HABEXR
controlling shareholder holding 284,471,352 shares of our A7) 284,471,352 R AR 17 HI 1 AR AR R ©
Company.
Note 3: It is a shareholder holding 64,800,648 shares of our Company. W3 HAEREARAR 64,800,648 %A% HIALE
(L) :Long position L: e

! “New Club House”: New Club House International Holdings Limited, a '
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on

8 June 2015.

2 “Great Club House”: Great Club House Holdings Limited, a company 2
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 8 June

2015.

s “Kanamoto Japan”: Kanamoto Co., Ltd.* (#f =\ 2477+ F ), acompany ~ °
incorporated in Japan on 24 September 1937.

[New Club House| : New Club House
International Holdings Limited * — & 720154 6
AR EEBRLHSAMAIHEREEAT -
[Great Club House] : Great Club House Holdings
Limited - —7A 20166 A8 HERBR LA S
MK BREEAT -

[4 A A7 | : Kanamoto Co., Ltd.* (}k X &4 75
FER)  —KR1937 59 A 24 BIE B ARG
v : o/

TERRFER/ DEBEERERERAA
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides,
among other things, that the Directors and other officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses as a result of any act or failure to act in
carrying out his/her functions. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors and officers liability insurance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
subsisted during the year ended 31 March 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme” disclosed
above, at no time during the year, the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements which
would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any
right to subscribe for the shares or debentures of the Company or its
subsidiaries or had exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2016, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group except those disclosed under the section headed
“Non-Competition Undertaking by Controlling Shareholders”.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed a total of 146 full-time
employees. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the staff cost of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$42.3 million.

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

44 AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016

BERERX
AARMANE 164 BHE (HRE) EFRALM
ABTHARRNAEREMEGRHERE - 3t
PITHBEB R RTEARBM A FH -
A B EK BERMXERRETA
£ ARFCRFHEENESRERARRER
5 -

EE = I\\IJ
EWIEJiiﬁEﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂé%ﬁﬁﬁé
BAEBNERRITREBNAL -

)451?9

B R 89 175 R

WA IRET L2 AR MR B - RELZE 20164 3
A 31 BLEFRE - AEEL R R ARE
B89 15 -

ESWBEROESHER

B EX [BERERT | — BT EE SN - ARA)
HAER A B e B AR B R R E R F A ER
FEJuTiT?E{—JKEF FEEF/AEBRBEARRFX
HIE AR RESFER - BRAREPTIE
B BERREARENEBHASHEATHFL
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ/\iW?%Tﬁf{ﬂ%ﬁ‘uu\;m%$’&T‘}ZEWE
RABNHEHFLEITEETZFER -

EEREFERBOES

M20164F3 A31 B « Br1EMR IR I FERR Fodah
—HEEEN  ESUTAERSERESS A
HEZHE AT s A EEERE
PR 55 5 ok AT BE S AR B S &Eﬂ;z%/\iéﬁw;%
EFE A e E R E A R e Ze

FMBUR

M2016F3A31 H » AREEAA L1462 2 M
BB - E2016F3A31THILFE  REFHD
BIRANAI23EEET -

EESRAKEREMNRE - B8 B
M I TE AR R -

HRIE



Directors’ Report
e

N

iji

REMUNERATION POLICY (Continued)

The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparing with market conditions. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme as an incentive to eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has established a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable by
the Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly
relevant income capped at HK$30,000 per month (increased from
HK$25,000 per month with effect from 1 June 2014).

The total costs charged to profit or loss for the year of approximately
HK$1,398,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,096,000), comprised
approximately HK$72,000 and HK$1,326,000 (2015: approximately
HK$10,000 and HK$1,086,000) in directors’ emoluments and other
staff costs respectively, and represented contributions paid or
payable to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. At the end of the reporting period, there were no
forfeited contributions available to reduce future obligations.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholders of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
March 2016 or during the financial year.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFER (“IPO”)

Trading of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 8 April 2016 (the “Listing Date”) and the Company
received net proceeds of approximately HK$81.8 million. As stated in
the Company’s Prospectus, the Company intends to use the
proceeds for (i) investment in rental equipment; (i) development of
GPS equipment monitoring system; (i) investment in transportation
equipment; (iv) improvement of facility for maintenance of the Group’s
equipment; and (v) the Group’s working capital.

During the period between the Listing Date and the date of this
annual report, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilised as
follows:

BRAAHBE(EXRABERED M
BREAE
RARKRMR20164 4 AsE ([ LT BHEL)) BALA
FEHMRMEE  MAR WIS RIEBFEL
B1.8BEEHBIL ° HIMARRHRERME - AR
AR AT FIBRAN () HHZENIRE () FE
EHHEEMNBBERRE (i) EHREHENEK
B (v RERBARREERERE  RWAE
EH—REEES -

RET AR AFRESHHE - EHASREA
TERRTRIAT T AE

Amount actually
used from the
Listing Date up to
the date of this
annual report

BELmHEHER

BEEXRFRAH

ERFEHSHE

(HK$ million)

(B8%T)

Investment in rental equipment HHZERIRE 18.6

Development of GPS equipment monitoring system  ZHE2HEE TR R BERZ L 0.0

Investment in transportation equipment EBRRBORE 0.0
Improvement of facility for maintenance of R E R A AR E B R ERE

the Group’s equipment 0.0

General working capital —REEES 0.0

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Upon the listing of the Company on the Stock Exchange on 8 April
2016, certain transactions between the Group and certain connected
persons of the Company have become continuing connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Set out
below are details of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company (which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

1.

Asoem Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a framework agreement with Asoem
(Int’l) Investment Company Limited (“Asoem”) on 17 March
2016 (the “Asoem Framework Agreement”) governing the
supply of () spare parts for the construction equipment of the
Group; (i) management service for the warehouse of the Group
which stores the spare parts belonging to the Group; and (iii)
certain construction equipment, from Asoem to the Group from
time to time. The term of the Asoem Framework Agreement is
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2018. For details of this
continuing connected transaction, please refer to the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Prospectus.

As Asoem is owned as to 100% by Lau Pong Man, the brother
of Lau Pong Sing and the brother-in-law of Chan Kit Mui Lina,
each being a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, Asoem is therefore their associate and a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of the fee payable to Asoem, or
companies controlled by it, by the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 was HK$4,800,000 and the actual amount of fee
payable by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
HK$4,116,000, not exceeding the annual cap amount. The
annual cap amounts of the fee payable to Asoem, or companies
controlled by it, by the Group for each of the years ending 31
March 2017 and 31 March 2018 are HK$5,800,000 and
HK$7,000,000 respectively.

BEBRERS ®)

Asoem HEZE 173 5%

AN EAsoem(Int’1)Investment Company
(TAsoem|) %2016 3 A 17 A 5] ML AE2E 17
% ([AsoemtEZR 5% |) » #1E Asoem T
) 72N 55 [ 41 R () SR AR A I T 3B 1 ¢ (i) R T
SHHREMNERRA - K (i) 5 TR
M o Asoem HEZR 17 s A BABR By £ A B &
Z£2018F3A31 AL - BARFEBER
SHFHE  BLHBRESFERERS ]
—f o

1 73 Asoem FR 2155 A4 1) ST 25 R PR 22 + 9L
BRIBREF100% @ HEERRLZLE A
EERERRE - ABEETRAE
14AE Asoem A1 FH B A RN A FH)
FAEAL -

HZE2016F3A31 BIEFE  AEEERN
Asoemz EZEHI M R WFE LR A
4,800,000 7T * MALERBZE 2016453
A31 ALLFEEMNNER S /4,116,000
BT WHERBEFE LR - BE2017F &
20183 AB1 HILFEFF  NEBEENR
Asoem & 88 89 F E L BR # 9 51| 7 5,800,000
77T 1 7,000,000 7 7T ©
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

2. A-One Pong Framework Agreement
The Company entered into a framework agreement with A-One
Pong Construction Equipment Limited (“A-One Pong”) on 17
March 2016 (the “A-One Pong Framework Agreement”)
governing the sales and rental of construction equipment and
vehicles by A-One Pong to the Group from time to time. The
term of the agreement granted under the A-One Pong
Framework Agreement is valid from the Listing Date to 31
March 2018. For details of this continuing connected
transaction, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

As A-One Pong is wholly-owned by Lau Pong Ming, brother of
Lau Pong Sing and the brother-in-law of Chan Kit Mui Lina,
each being a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, A-One Pong is therefore their associate and a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount for the transactions under the A-One
Pong Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2016
was HK$6,800,000 and the actual amount of consideration for
the transactions for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
HK$4,646,000, not exceeding the annual cap amount. The
annual cap amounts for the transactions under the A-One Pong
Framework Agreement for the years ending 31 March 2017 and
31 March 2018 are HK$7,800,000 and HK$8,800,000
respectively.

No related party transactions disclosed in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements in the year constitute a non-
exempt continuing connected transaction as defined under the
Listing Rules.
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ANNUAL REVIEW

Pursuant to Rule 14A. 55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) according to the
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange,
the board of directors engaged the auditor of the Company to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor will issue its letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the external auditor’s letter will be provided by the auditor
to the Company, and will be submitted to the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board

LAU Pong Sing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain
better results and improve its corporate image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

During the year under review, the Company has engaged an
international consulting firm to oversee and recommend appropriate
actions as to ensure that the Company is complying with the
requirement of the Listing Rules before and after listing. Moreover, the
Company has adopted its corporate governance practices which are
reproduced from the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

During the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (“CG Code”), save and except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company are both performed by Mr. Lau
Pong Sing. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive officer in the same individual provides the
Company with strong and consistent leadership, efficient usage of
resources and allows for effective planning, formulation and
implementation of the Company’s business strategies which will
enable the Company to sustain the development of its business
efficiently.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors of the Company (the “Directors”). The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors regarding any
non-compliance with the Model Code.

All the Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the period from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY
THE BOARD

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities
and is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
determining the direction of future development of the Group. The
Board oversees the Group’s operation and financial performance.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Currently, the Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.
Since there are three independent non-executive Directors and at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, the Company has complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the
Company has complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The
number of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong
independent element in the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. The Board comprises the following
Directors:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lau Pong Sing (2IF8A%) (Chairman,; Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (B'2#§) (Chief Operating Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Kitagawa Ken (dtJ11{)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond ({a]$&%x)

Mr. Siu Chak Yu (B512F)

Mr. Li Ping Chi (/)

The Chairman and executive Director, Mr. Lau Pong Sing is the
spouse of Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, an executive Director. The
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Pong Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui,
Lina, are interested in the shares of the Company through their
interest in New Club House International Holdings Limited (“New
Club House”) and Great Club House Holdings Limited (“Great Club
House”) respectively (for details, please refer to the Prospectus).
Instances of actual or potential conflict have been identified and
minimised. Please refer to the “Directors and Senior Management”,
“Directors’ Report — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Directors’ Report
— Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 65 to 68, pages 42
to 43 and pages 46 to 48 in this annual report respectively for more
details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
one another as at the date of this annual report.

Non-executive Director and Independent non-
executive Directors

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the
non-executive Director and the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have shared their valuable experiences to the Board
for promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The non-executive Director and all of the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed under a fixed term of three years and are also
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles”).
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent
in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director was provided with the necessary
induction, training and information to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations prior to his/her
appointment. The Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development courses and seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company will
continue to arrange and fund suitable training and regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on the latest developments and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, each of the Directors has
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the table below:

Name of Director Attendance

EEME HE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Lau Pong Sing (2/FB5X) BUFR S (£ 7T AEEL) v
(Chairman; Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (Ff21&) PRRIGL T (S ERE) v/
(Chief Operating Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITES

Mr. Kitagawa Ken (db)11{#) bl 4 v/

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITES

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (fa]$&%z) faERIE L v

Mr. Siu Chak Yu (F£F) BEFRE v

Mr. Li Ping Chi (/&) FRERE v/
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 17 March 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from 8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to
the respective terms of the service agreements. The non-executive
Director entered into a letter of appointment dated 17 March 2016
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to the terms of the
letter of appointment. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment on 17 March 2016
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to the respective terms
of the letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of the Directors are governed by the Articles. Article 83(3) of the
Articles provides that any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles, at each AGM, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to, but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
not to offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation
who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or were
last re- elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Lau Pong Sing, Chan Kit Mui, Lina, Kitagawa Ken, Ho
Chung Tai Raymond, Siu Chak Yu, Li Ping Chi will retire from office as
Director and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.
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BOARD MEETING

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year. The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate in Board meetings either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and he/
she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

As the shares of the Company were first listed on the Stock Exchange
on 8 April 2016, only one board meeting was held on 17 March 2016
(before the Listing Date) during the year ended 31 March 2016,
attended by all of its members.
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From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, 3
Board meetings were held. Set out below are details of the
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and
committee meetings held during the period from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this annual report:

BEMAMEREEARFHRAY ERT=ZRE
BEFE  UTEHIREFTLFA LM AMER

BEEAFHAYIHEMBRTEEEERNEER
SEEMN TS

Meetings attended/Held
HE/BINEE
Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

Y- B B% M
EEn? -f ZEQEE ZESEH ZESEH
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HTEE
Mr. Lau Pong Sing (%1383%) (Chairman) B () 3/3 NATER 1N 17
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (B0215) R2igat 33 N/AZTE N/AZE A NATIER
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHTES
Mr. Kitagawa Ken (3£1/ ) EERE 33 NATEHA NATER NATEF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BUFHTES
Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (&%) HERET 33 22 NATER NAT B
Mr. Siu Chak Yu (B)25) BEFLLE 33 22 11 17
Mr. Li Ping Chi (£//7) FRELE 33 2/2 N 11
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING BRRBEFERE
An AGM is an important forum in which the management of the BREFAEGE —EEBEAAREERELBRFTE

Company can communicate with the shareholders. As the Company
was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 April 2016, no general
meeting of the Company was held from the Listing Date and up to
the date of this annual report and the upcoming AGM will be held on
22 August 2016 (“2016 AGM”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 17 March 2016, with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond, Mr. Siu
Chak Yu and Mr. Li Ping Chi (Chairman).

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, among
others, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor, reviewing the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting and overseeing
the internal control procedures of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that
the Audit Committee must comprise a minimum three members and
must be chaired by an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required in Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no meeting of the Audit
Committee was held. The first meeting of the Audit Committee was
held on 6 May 2016 to make recommendations to the Board as
follows: (i) on the re-appointment of auditor and to approve the
engagement letter of the auditor; (i) advise the Board to engage an
international consulting firm to provide advisory services about risk
assessment, internal control and corporate governance.

On 28 June 2016, another meeting was held to review the
Company’s continuing connected transactions and internal control
matters, and the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2016. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 complied
with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee oversees the corporate governance functions of
the Company. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee in relation
to corporate governance functions are set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee. Upon the listing of the Company,
the Audit Committee appointed an international consulting firm to
perform a CG Code compliance review. The review covers the
Company’s terms of reference of board committees, corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management and disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.
The consultant has provided certain recommendations on improving
the Company’s corporate governance practices, which the Company
will adopt accordingly to ensure sound corporate governance
practices.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 17 March 2016, with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5
of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, being one executive Director, namely, Mr. Lau Pong Sing
(Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Siu Chak Yu and Mr. Li Ping Chi. Accordingly, a majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 April
2016 and the Nomination Committee was only established on 17
March 2016, no committee meeting for the Nomination Committee
was held during the year ended 31 March 2016. During the period
from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, a
meeting of the Nomination Committee was held to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 17 March 2016,
with specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26
of the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members, being one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Lau Pong Sing, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Chak Yu (Chairman) and Mr.
Li Ping Chi. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a set of formal and
transparent procedures for developing policies on such remuneration;
(ii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and members of senior
management.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 April
2016 and the Nomination Committee was only established on 17
March 2016, no committee meeting for the Nomination Committee
was held during the year ended 31 March 2016. During the period
from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, a
meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held to review the
remuneration package of the individual executive Directors and senior
management and to make recommendations to the Board on such
remuneration packages.
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company then
in office by band for the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows:

Number of individuals

SNEEE K S RE BB 5 1 H N
RIBCEEARTRSTREXEBISE  REE
2016 F3ABIHIEFE  ARAREREEND
BERBILZARE S NFEEFMFBOT

N

Number of
Remuneration band individuals
FrEN 4R Bl A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T
HK$2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2,000,001 78 7t £ 3,000,00078 7T 2
Total @t 5

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2016 are set out in note to the consolidated financial
statements.

OTHER COMMITTEE

A Risk Management Committee under the management of the
Company has been established. The Risk Management Committee
comprises three members, being two executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Pong Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, and one senior staff
member of the Company, namely Mr. Wong Cheuk Man. The primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to deliberate
risk management related policies and procedures, review the
effectiveness of risk management activities and handle issues of
emergency.

As the Company was only listed on the Stock Exchange on 8 April
2016 and the Risk Management Committee was only established on
17 March 2016, no committee meeting for the Risk Management
Committee was held during the year ended 31 March 2016. During
the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, a
meeting was held on 6 May 2016 to review the internal controls of the
Group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopts a board diversity policy. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. Diversity of Board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in
addition to educational background, professional qualifications,
industry and regional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Lau Pong Sing, Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, New Club House and
Great Club House (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”),
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 March 2016
(“Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company, pursuant to which
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company have irrevocably
undertaken to the Company that he/she/it would not, and would
procure that his/her/its close associates (except any members of the
Group) would not, during the restricted period, directly or indirectly,
either on his/her/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, among other things, carry on,
participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each
case whether as shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business
which is or may be in competition with the business currently carried
on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group
(save and except for certain residual contracts of which shall be
terminated upon their respective expiry dates (the details of which are
set out in the Prospectus)). Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided confirmation in
respect of compliance with his/her/its undertaking under the Deed of
Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders of the terms of
the Deed of Non-competition, and were satisfied that each of the
Controlling Shareholders has complied with his/her/its undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition during the period from the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditors in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services provided to the Group were approximately
HK$1.44 million and HK$3.65 million, respectively. The non-audit
services consist of taxation, internal control advice and other services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 78.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The internal
controls are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and to
minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed, and are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risks to achieve business
objectives of the Group, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against misstatements or losses.

During the year, in preparation for the listing of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, the Company engaged an external international
consulting firm to review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems.

Relevant recommendations made by the consultant during the year
have already been implemented in stages by the Group to further
enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms that the Group’s
risk management internal control systems are adequate and effective
and have complied with the CG Code provisions on internal control
throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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The Company does not have an internal audit function. Nonetheless,
it has engaged an independent international consulting firm to
perform risk management advisory and internal audit advisory
services. The services include risk assessment and risk-based internal
controls assessment. Recommendations on risks and internal control
deficiencies identified will be provided by the consultant.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Mr. Wong Cheuk Man. The Company
Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s processes and
communications among Board members, shareholders and the
management of the Company. The Company Secretary undertakes
at least 15 hours of relevant professional training annually to update
his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN

EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders of
the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary at the head office of the Company in Hong
Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 15, 19th Floor, Concordia
Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO BRREEERIREEN

THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the REA[[AAATELSEEmEH - FTHBEAQ TR
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in ~ FH#ENPERH AT WMEL

Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD BRERBRAESREEZNER
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 58 of the Articles for RERRERFRIASIZE 2 RZARBHAELTMAE
putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and  581{& - MR T RIEFH R £ [IRE A HKE
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders — #FIIKE | —E% ©

to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS ERXMH

The Company has adopted, on 17 March 2016, the amended and AR A E R 20164E3 17 BEEAA A 71 82016
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company 4 A8 B4 MM KL M EF|HEZE M
which took effect from 8 April 2016. There was no change in the  F4HBl- B FT RN EEAEHRE E -
constitutional documents of the Company during the period from the — f& » AR BRI ZFR 4 HIF 2 E) -

Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

By order of the Board AEESa0

Lau Pong Sing 21

Chairman and Executive Director EEFEHTEF

28 June 2016 —E-REXA=F+NH
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OVERVIEW =
The table below contains certain information about our Directors and ~ FTxR#HIINETEREERSREEENEL -
senior management.
Date of
appointment
Date of joining to the current Responsibilities
Name Age Position our Group position in our Group
ZEZRABN
s Fik B MAZEENAE HAH AEERE
Mr. Lau Pong Sing 59 Executive Director; 22 December 2004 11 June 2015 Our overall management
(BIFBR%) Chairman; Chief and business development;
executive officer setting business strategies,
direction and goals
BIFBBK 59 WTES X7 20045 12 A 22 H 20156 A11 A HAMBEEEREBER
B BIEEBRE  AMKEE
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina 58 Executive Director; 22 December 2004 11 June 2015 Overseeing our
(BRZ1) Chief operating administration, financial
officer control and human
resources
Rzt 58 WITES SBHEE 2004F12A22H 20156 A11H EERMOTE - MBEHR
ANER
Mr. Kitagawa Ken 60 Non-executive 10 December 2015~ 10 December 2015 Supervising the management
(Glalik3] Director of our Company
ek E 60 FNTES 2015F 12 A10H 2015F 12 4108 EBALNAERE
Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai 77 Independent 17 March 2016 17 March 2016 Supervising the management
Raymond ({a4%k) Non-executive of our Company
Director
ERET TR 77 BUFHITES 201653 A17H 201653 A17H EBADNAEEE
Mr. Siu Chak Yu 55 Independent 17 March 2016 17 March 2016 Supervising the management
(FETF) Non-executive of our Company
Director
BETRE 55 BUFHTESE 20163 A 17 H 20163 A17H EBANAEEE
Mr. Li Ping Chi 56 Independent 17 March 2016 17 March 2016 Supervising the management
(ZmE) Non-executive of our Company
Director
FRELE 56 BAUFHTESF 20163 A17H 20163 A17H EERARERE
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OVERVIEW (Continued)

Date of joining

BE (s

pi 3

\
)

Date of
appointment
to the current

Responsibilities

Name Age Position our Group position in our Group
ZEZBABN
#H R B MAREEHNASE HWAH rEERE
Mr. Lau Tsz Fung 30 Vice president — 1 April 2009 1 April 2014 Overseeing our sales and
(21F88) sales and marketing marketing affairs
2 FiERE 30 Bl HEREH) 2009F4A1H 2014F4 A1 R EERMNHEEREHER
Mr. Wong Cheuk Man 50 Financial controller 1 January 2010 1 January 2010 Overseeing our financial
(F£8) management and company
secretarial matters
FEfEsE 50 g 20101 A 1A 20101 A1H EERMNIBERR
RRAMEEE
Mr. Lee Lut Kei 37 Sales and marketing 13 March 2014 13 March 2014 Sales and marketing affairs
(FE2) manager
FEokE 37 HE N R 201437131 201443 7131 HENEHEDR
Ms. Tam Chung Oi, Venus 48 Purchasing manager 1 January 2015 1 January 2015 Inventory control; purchasing
(EBHE) and shipping affairs
EMELL 48 RBRE 20151814 20151318 BEZH  RERBESH
Mr. Yeung Oi Fan 66 Technical manager 26 March 2012 1 April 2015 Overseeing machinery
(155LM) service, maintenance and
parts; training and
management of service
team
izl 66 Bl g 20124637261 20154 A1 R EERMRYE REREM
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OVERVIEW (Continued)

Date of joining

BE @
Date of

appointment
to the current

Responsibilities

Name Age Position our Group position in our Group
ZEZBABN

®E R B MAXEENBE  HBEH FEEBE

Mr. Wong Yue Lam Leo 43 Chief Accountant 15 June 2016 15 June 2016 Group’s accounting, financial
(B&R) reporting and system

implementation

BARKE 43 BREE 20166 7158 20166 4151 SEE  BBHWER

Mr. Lee Chi Hang 39 Accountant 1 January 2015 1 January 2015 Accounting and financial
(Zx1B) reporting
HEEE 39 SEHAD 2015413 1H 201561 A1H S M BERE

Notes: 5T

(1) Mr. Lau Tsz Fung (“Mr. TF Lau”) is the son of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan.

) Mr. Kitagawa is an employee of Kanamoto HK and is appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Investment Agreement dated 13 August 2015 entered into among
Great Club House, Kanamoto Japan, New Club House and Kanamoto
HK.

The business address of our Directors and senior management is Unit
15, 19/F, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth
information regarding our Directors. The functions and duties of the
Board include convening shareholders’ meetings, reporting on the
Board’s work at these meetings, implementing the resolutions passed
at these meetings, determining business and investment plans,
formulating our annual budget and final accounts, and formulating our
proposals for profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of
registered capital. In addition, the Board is responsible for exercising
other powers, functions and duties in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

(1) BIFBEERBIEERRLLIMNET -

@ B EEREEEAEENEE @ RIEGreat Club
House * @4 H 7 + New Club House &k & A&
2RI BEA2015F8 A13HM E N AR E
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REEEE1RRERES19E15FE ©
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Pong Sing 2I38

Executive Director, chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. Lau, aged 59, was appointed as our executive Director and
Chairman of the Board on 11 June 2015 and concurrently serves as
our chief executive officer. Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for our
Group’s overall management and business development, as well
setting our business strategies, direction and goals. Mr. Lau is also a
member of our Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Mr. Lau is the chairman of our Nomination Committee.

Prior to joining our Group in 2004 as one of the founders, Mr. Lau
had accumulated over 20 years of experience in the construction
equipment industry through his directorship in and management of
Ajax Pong Construction Equipment Limited from September 1983 to
March 1992 and Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited from April 1992 to
December 2014. Mr. Lau had in the past managed or oversight
various aspects of our Group, including business development and
strategies, financial management and management of training to be
given to our employees. Under the leadership of Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan, our Group has entered into strategic partnership agreements
with reputable construction equipment suppliers, and participated in
a number of landmark construction projects.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan and father of Mr. TF Lau.

Ms. CHAN Kit Mui, Lina RZ 1§

Executive Director and chief operating officer

Ms. Chan, aged 58, has been our executive Director since 11 June
2015 and also serves as our chief operating officer. She is in charge
of our Group’s administration, financial control and human resources.

Prior to joining our Group in 2004 as one of the founders, Ms. Chan
has acquired over 20 years of experience in the construction
equipment industry. She was principally responsible for corporate
reorganisation, business management control, as well as setting up
corporate administration systems and finance systems, during her
positions as deputy managing director of Ajax Pong Construction
Equipment Limited from April 1989 to March 1992, and deputy
managing director of Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited from April 1992 to
December 2014.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Since joining our Group, she has worked closely with Mr. Lau to
expand our Group’s business in Hong Kong and Macau and assisted
in the set up of our current operation system and staff welfare
scheme.

Ms. Chan obtained a Secretarial Diploma from the Chinese Young
Men’s Christian Association of Hong Kong in May 1978 and an
Intermediate Stage Certificate in Book-keeping from the London
Chamber of Commerce and Industry in Spring 1978. She also
completed the Computerized Accounting System for Commerce and
Industry Training Course given by the Hong Kong Productivity Council
in October 1986.

Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau and mother of Mr. TF Lau.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Non-executive Director

Mr. Kitagawa Ken it )| {&

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kitagawa, aged 60, is a non-executive Director of our Company
and is responsible for supervising the overall management of the
Group.

Mr. Kitagawa concurrently serves as the director and chief operating
officer of Kanamoto HK, the single largest supplier of our Group.
Since joining Kanamoto HK in July 2009, Mr. Kitagawa has been
responsible for overseeing its management and business operations.
His duties and roles include formulating the company’s business
plans and strategies in Hong Kong, ensuring proper distribution of the
company’s resources, as well as liaising with both overseas and local
customers. He also monitors our Company’s financial control and
performance.

Prior to joining Kanamoto HK, he had gained over 28 years of
experience in the banking and finance industry. He served various
positions in the Hokkaido Takushoku Bank from April 1980 to March
1998, where he was responsible for a variety of duties including
economic research, loan judgement and general affairs. He was a
controller with THK America Inc. and later a manager of corporate
compliance in legal department with THK Co., Ltd from April 1998 to
March 2007. He later joined CEL Group Holdings Inc. in May 2007
and held the position as managing director of Operation between
September 2007 and March 2008 before becoming a regional
manager of Aeon Bank for the Hokkaido area.

Mr. Kitagawa obtained his chartered member of The Securities
Analysts Association of Japan in September 1996. He obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Waseda University in March
1980.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ir. Dr. HO Chung Tai Raymond &%

Independent non-executive Director

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond, SBS, MBE, S.B. St. J., JP, aged 77,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 17
March 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee.

Dr. Ho has over 50 years of experience in civil, structural,
environmental and geotechnical engineering industries and has
directly managed a number of mega-sized engineering projects.

Dr. Ho received his degree of doctor of philosophy in Civil Engineering
from the City University of London in June 1971, an Honorary Doctor
of Laws from the University of Manchester in September 2001 and an
Honorary degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong in November 1999. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1963 with a Bachelor of
Science in Engineering and obtained his diploma for advanced
studies in engineering, soil mechanics from the University of
Manchester in July 1964.

As at the date of the annual report, Dr. Ho served or is currently
serving as director of the following listed public companies in Hong

Kong:
Period Office
]| B

10
BUIFHITES

AERE L T2

BUIHNITEF

fAfEZRE T T2A0 - SREFEE - MBE * BHH
A BEBR - KP4t 775% 0 R 201643 A
17 AEZEABUENTES - RRAERZES
B E o

AELREIAR - &8 RRRELTIREERR
BOFHER  BEEERZAARATIZIEAR -

ABEM1971 F6 ARBHRIWMMAZLATE
FEF RN - R2001F9 ARESHITEAS
TREBEBIE T B RN 1999 F 11 A BB HEH
MABIHERSLEBF BN - HRN1963F
11TARBEBREBRE  STESBB T84
WH1964 7 ARG EMITFAESR IR T
EHERER

REFAY  ABLEHIREEETTIEFELT
NEINES:

Listed public company on the Stock Exchange
R Em AT

Since December 2013 Independent non-executive director

B 20134 12 At BYIFNITES
Since September 2007 Independent non-executive director
H2007 9 A e BYIFNITES
Since June 2005 Independent non-executive director
H 20054 6 A 2 BYIFNITES
Since September 1993 Independent non-executive director
B 199349 A e BYIFNITES

ChinLink International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 997)

LER 2 BBRIERABR AT (RGH R : 997)

GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3800)

RAI e IRIER AR A F (RS - 3800)

China State Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3311)

PEEEBREEBR AT (RGH R : 3311)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 262)

MEEREAREEGRAT (RMHRR : 262)
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Other current appointments and offices of Dr. Ho are further set out
below:

Current appointments and offices e
B AT Z £ R BAL

BE@
B IEHITES (8)

AT HM B AT RBENEARTREBAE—$
HANWOT -

Chairman of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and Ling Ao Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (since February 2005)

e EREAGEREUMNRERZBEUZLEANZEGIE(H2005F2 A1)

° Professional advisor to the Office of the Ombudsman of Hong Kong (for the
periods 1 July 1995 to 31 March 2013 and 1 October 2015 to present)
e EHAEARFHEELAEFXEM(995F7 A1 HZE201343 431 HHIM Kk 20154F

10A18&%

Mr. SIU Chak Yu #EF

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, BBS, JP, aged 55, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 17 March 2016. He is a member of our
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Siu is the chairman of our Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Siu has gained experience in legal practice in Hong Kong. He
obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in November 1983 and July
1984, respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
September 1986, England and Wales in June 1990, Australian Capital
Territory in February 1991, and in Singapore in September 1992; and
as a barrister in Australia in February 1991. Mr. Siu was appointed as
a Notary Public in April 1997, a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in
January 2000, and currently a partner of Hastings & Co.

Mr. Siu is currently the chairman of the Buildings Appeal Tribunal,
chairman of the Environmental Impact Assessment Appeal Board,
deputy chairman of the HKSAR Passports Appeal Board and a board
member of the Estates Agents Authority.

Mr. LI Ping Chi &

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Li, aged 56, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 17 March 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Li is the
chairman of our Audit Committee.

Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He
was an assistant assessor for the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department from August 1982 to February 1985. He joined Touche
Ross Hong Kong in March 1985 and was promoted to the position of
audit manager in August 1989. He later joined Deloitte China in April
1990 as a result of its merger with Touche Ross Hong Kong and had
been a partner from June 1996 to May 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEhENREREE

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li received a higher diploma in accountancy with distinction from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

QOur senior management members are responsible for the day-to-day
management of our Company’s business. None of the members of
our senior management has been a director of a public company the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas.

Mr. LAU Tsz Fung (2] ¥ &), aged 30, is our vice president and oversees
the sales and marketing department of our Company. He is principally
responsible for encouraging sustainable development through the
delivery of updated market analysis and information, and works
closely with the sales team in attracting potential customers and
contracts. His roles and duties include maintaining a high volume of
rental transactions and good relationships with worldwide
manufacturers and suppliers. Mr. TF Lau has completed training
sessions on construction equipment given by Donaldson Company,
Inc., Nippon Sharyo, Ltd., Furukawa UNIC Corporation and Denyo
Co., Ltd..

Mr. TF Lau received his Bachelor's degree in Business Economics
from the University of California Santa Barbara in September 2008.
Prior to joining our Group as a sales and marketing officer in April
2009, he was a marketing officer assistant at Ajax Pong (Holdings)
Limited from April 2008 to June 2008, where he was responsible for
managing relationship with potential customers and overseas buyers.

Mr. TF Lau is the son of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan.

Mr. WONG Cheuk Man (£ £=#), aged 50, is the financial controller,
company secretary and one of the authorised representatives of our
Company. He is primarily responsible for our Group’s accounting,
internal control, financial reporting, resource management and
information technology affairs.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENENEEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Western Sydney Nepean
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in September
1999 and obtained a Master’s degree in International Accounting
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong
has over 28 years of experience in accounting. He was an assistant
accountant at Sanyo Electric (Hong Kong) Ltd. from July 1987 to April
1990, cost accountant and later assistant finance manager of STD
Holding Ltd. from August 1990 to September 1994. He served as
accounting manager and subsequently financial controller of Ajax
Pong (Holdings) Limited from September 1994 prior to joining our
Group in January 2010.

Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Mr. LEE Lut Kei (Z£ ), aged 37, is the sales and marketing manager
of our Company. His responsibilities include formulating marketing
plans and leading the sales team in achieving sales targets of our
Group.

Mr. Lee joined ATAL Engineering Ltd. In July 2001 as an engineer
trainee and was promoted to the position of engineer in January 2005
before his departure in June 2006. Prior to joining our Group in March
2014, he was a technical sales representative and later a marketing
manager for Hilti (HK) Ltd. from June 2006 to December 2013, where
his duties include customer relationship management and developing
marketing strategies. Mr. Lee has completed a number of engineering
and construction equipment related training given by the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, Denyo Co., Ltd., and Furukawa UNIC
Corporation.

Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical Energy
Systems Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in November
2001 and a Master’s degree in Electrical Engineering from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in December 2006.

Ms. TAM Chung Oi Venus (FEff1 &), aged 48, is the purchasing manager
of our Company. She is primarily responsible for our Group’s
purchasing and shipping affairs, inventory control and works with the
sales team in determining prices and discounts.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENENEEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Prior to joining our Group in January 2015, Ms. Tam was an assistant
purchasing manager and later a business manager at Ajax Pong
(Holdings) Limited from June 1998 to December 2014.

Ms. Tam completed the Certificate Programme on Company
Secretarial Practice — Public and Listed Companies in June 1997
and obtained a Professional Diploma in International Shipping
Management in July 2000 from The Hong Kong Management
Association. She has also completed a training course given by the
Hong Kong Productivity Council on Profitable Purchasing Strategies
from October to November 1998.

Mr. YEUNG Oi Fan (#8l11), aged 66, is the technical manager of
our Company and is principally responsible for overseeing machinery
service, maintenance and parts, as well as training and management
of our service team. He first joined our Group in March 2012 as a
workshop manager.

Mr. Yeung has over 13 years of experience in mechanical engineering.
He joined Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited as an assistant plant manager
from August 1991 to July 1997, and later a technical manager from
August 1997 to March 2000 and a workshop manager from April
2000 to September 2001.

Mr. Yeung has completed the Safety & Health Supervisor Training
Course (Construction Industry) given by The Hong Kong Safety
Training Association in April 2015. He is also certified by a number of
corporations such as Denyo Co., Ltd, Furukawa UNIC Corporation
and Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. to operate a variety of
construction equipment.

Mr. WONG Yue Lam Leo, (Z4Z7F), aged 43, is the Chief Accountant
of our Company. He is primarily responsible for our Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and system implementation.

Mr. Wong graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Accounting in 1994. Mr. Wong has over 18 years
of experience in accounting and auditing. Before joining the Company
in June 2016, he was an Assistant Finance Manager in Cathay Pacific
Catering Services (HK) Limited.

Mr. Wong currently is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEhENREIRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. LEE Chi Hang (Z&18), aged 39, is an accountant of our Company
and is responsible for monitoring the Group’s receivables, payables,
sales and aging.

Mr. Lee has around 17 years of experience in accounting. Prior to
joining our Group in January 2015, he was an accounts clerk at Hui
Lau Shan Food Manufacturing Company Limited and Chesterton
Petty Limited from July 1998 to June 2000 and from June 2000 to
March 2004, respectively. He was a finance and administrative officer
and later promoted to assistant finance and administration manager
at Kajun Candy Manufactory Limited from April 2004 to December
2007, and an accounting officer and later an accountant at Ajax Pong
(Holdings) Limited from January 2008 to December 2014.

Through a distant learning course, Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of
Science in Applied Accounting from Oxford Brookes University. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Accredited Accounting
Technicians.

Each of our senior management did not hold any other directorship in
listed public companies in the three years prior to the date of this
annual report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR RGeS

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED
DRAEEZRERAA

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 148, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR RGeS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Y= AT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% =%

H b 2 U e

T < E=A=1—A

e

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T F&T T
Revenue W25 6 239,341 228,225
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR A A (162,513) (158,904)
Gross profit EF 76,828 69,321
Other income EH bl A 7 2,552 2,065
Other gains and losses H e K EsiE 8 494 2,625
Administrative expenses THFAX (27,890) (21,426
Listing expenses EmRE (21,265) -
Finance costs BERX 9 (1,689) (1,113)
Profit before taxation R 7 BT Vi ) 29,030 51,472
Income tax expense FrS B 10 (8,107) (8,547)
Profit and total comprehensive FRaA 2 RS2
income for the year 11 20,923 42,925
Earnings per share — GRARN —
Basic (HK cents) AR B 14 2.94 6.02

TERAFER/ SEBEERERERAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR MR

At 31 March 2016 R—ZF— F=HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF —ETRE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BIsE FET FHT
Non-current Assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NEE 15 169,806 137,634
Deposit placed for a life insurance policy R 8 175 16 2,494 2,437
Deposits for purchase of property, HEEWE  WBELRENIRS
plant and equipment - 121
172,300 140,192
Current Assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 6,898 12,461
Trade receivables, deposits and B RWGRIE - e RTERRIE
prepayments 18 77,581 56,928
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR N ® 19 22,292 27,890
106,771 97,279
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HARERFRIA 20 55,185 53,790
Amount due to a shareholder FEfF— B RFIB 21 - 21,730
Tax liabilities HEAaE 7,270 4,708
Obligations under finance leases — BEMRERFE — —FREIH
due within one year 22 285 478
Borrowings — due within one year B — —FE X3 HA 23 75,199 28,142
Bank overdraft RITBEX 19 167 =
138,106 108,848
Net Current Liabilities REBEEFE (31,335) (11,569)
Total Assets less Current Liabilites #EERABERS 140,965 128,623
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR MIRILER

At 31 March 2016 R—Z— XF=HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt EE THET FH&T
Non-current Liabilities FREBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 24 20,384 16,844
Obligations under finance leases — FMEMREET - —FERIH
due after one year 22 45 342
Borrowings — due after one year B - —F1%5H 23 44 868
20,473 18,054
Net Assets EEFE 120,492 110,569
Capital and Reserves B S
Issued capital BT 25 27 27,378
Reserves i 120,465 83,191
Total Equity R 120,492 110,569

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 148 were #HNFE79EEF 148BE 2 GARBHRREN —-F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28  —/<&E/NF =+ /\ HEZ =St R IFETIZE

June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTHEEREES
LAU PONG SING CHAN KIT MUI, LINA
EiE:24 B2
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o

l— A4
1‘ /\II\DII\@%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H
Issued Share  Merger Legal Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve  reserve profits Total
ERTRE ROERE AORE ZTERE ELfE RZE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THT THL TAT THL THL TAT THIL
(Note i) (Notei)  (Noteii)
(sxi)  (Bazi)  (BsEiin)
At 1 April 2014 M2014564 A1H 27,378 - - 12 (6) 60,259 87,644
Profit and total comprehensive M3 F| & 2 E Uit %8
income for the year - - - - - 42,925 42,925
Dividends recognised as R A KNS (3E13)
distribution (note 13) - - - - - (20,0000  (20,000)
At 31 March 2015 201563 A 31H 27,378 - - 12 (5 83,184 110,569
Profit and total comprehensive /i H| & 2 Ediss 4848
income for the year - - - - - 20,923 20,923
Dividend recognised as REDKEBRS (HFE13)
distribution (note 13) - - - - - (11,000) (11,000)
Arising from reorganisation REEH (27,351) 129,794  (102,443) - - - -
At 31 March 2016 7201663 431 H 27 129,794  (102,443) 12 (5 93,107 120,492
Notes: e
Share premium represents the difference between the nominal amount BirmEiE BEARETRAEEEEE &2

of the share capital issued by the Company and the aggregate of the
nominal amount of the issued share capital and other reserves of AP
Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary which was acquired by the
Company pursuant to the Group Reorganisation (as described in note
2).

Merger reserve represents the difference between the amount of share
capital and share premium of the Company issued, and the issued
share capital of AP Rentals Limited exchanged in connection with the
Group Reorganisation.

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau
Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered in Macau is
required to transfer part of its profits of each accounting period of not
less than 25% as legal reserve, until it reaches an amount equal to half
of the capital.

AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I\\/T\ IE N7 ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H
2016 2015
—E-REF —hHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Operating activities KK
Profit before taxation & % 51T Vi A1) 29,030 51,472
Adjustments for: AT EL AR :
Allowance for doubtful debts ERERRREETE
recognised, net 1,694 1,775
Depreciation of property, M - BREMERETE
plant and equipment 31,128 24,344
Finance costs BhE KA 1,689 1,113
Gain on disposal of property, HEMZE - BE &&ERE
plant and equipment (2,371) (4,181)
Interest income NN (265) (86)
Listing expenses EWRAX 21,265 =
Operating cash flows before movements LEECEHFINELERERE
in working capital 82,170 74,437
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAGEM) 5,563 (8,273)
Increase in trade receivables, deposits B SEINGRIE « e RTA FIEE i1
and prepayments (18,396) (1,484)
Increase in amounts due from JE Uk B B X B SR IE I A0
related companies - (8,426)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5 R E b fET 5RIE O d) 30
other payables (12,195) 542
Cash generated from operations BIBSIRES 57,142 61,796
Income tax (paid) refunded (BA) BREPFTEH (2,005) 1,648
Net cash from operating activities REEBMBHRSFHE 55,137 63,344
Investing activities REEE
Interest received 24 F B 208 8
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  [EE#%% - &= M &E (81,026) (69,518)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE « BE MRENPTERIE
plant and equipment 20,218 138,578
Proceeds from redemption of fBEEHEE S RIE
investments in bonds 5,005 356
Purchase of investments in bonds BEESEE (5,005) -
Advances to a related company A — eI BB A B IR B - (1,781)
Repayments from a related company —fERERBIER = 1,781
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHTARSEE (60,600) (55,576)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I\\/T\ IE N7 ;ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H
2016 2015
—E—RE —FRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Financing activities il 5 B
Interest paid BEAFE (1,689) (1,113)
Listing expenses paid B LR (11,626) =
New borrowings raised i 63,996 20,075
Repayments of borrowings EEER (17,763) (8,474)
Repayments of obligations under BEERMEHEERT
finance leases (490) (2,440)
Dividend paid EfFE (11,000) -
Repayments to a shareholder e — B B R R (21,730) (1,013)
Net cash (used in) from RUESEE (FTA) S REFHE
financing activities (302) 7,035
Net (decrease) increase in cash REeERBESEEYCRD) EMFE
and cash equivalents (5,765) 14,803
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNESRESEEY
beginning of the year 27,890 13,087
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRESEEY
end of the year 22,125 27,890
Analysis of the balances of cash RERRESEEWEHRIINT
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR LIRS 22,292 27,890
Bank overdraft RITBEX (167) -
22,125 27,890
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company and
registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands on 11 June 2015. The shares of
the Company have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 8 April
2016. The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note
34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Pursuant to the group reorganisation to rationalise the Group’s
structure in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange, AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited was
interspersed between AP Rentals Limited and its shareholder
(the “Shareholder”) on 21 July 2015, and then the Company
was interspersed between AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings Limited
and its shareholders on the same day (the “Group
Reorganisation”). After that the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group. The
Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries resulting
from the Group Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity. Details of the Group Reorganisation are set out in the
paragraph headed “History and Development” of the
Prospectus.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group
which include the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the companies comprising the Group for the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2015 have been prepared as if the Company
had always been the holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and the current group structure had been
in existence throughout the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015, or since their respective dates of incorporation/
registration, where it is a shorter period.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2015 present the assets and liabilities of the
companies comprising the Group which had been incorporated
or registered on that date and as if the current group structure
had been in existence at that date.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$31,335,000 (2015: HK$11,569,000).
The directors of the Company consider that the Group is able
to mitigate the liquidity risk as the Group has obtained sufficient
funds upon the receipt of proceeds from the global offering of
the Company’s shares after the listing on the Stock Exchange
subsequent to 31 March 2016 to support its operation as well
as other cash outflow commitments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
which are effective for the Group’s accounting period beginning
on 1 April 2015. For the purpose of preparing and presenting

these consolidated financial statements, the Group has adopted
all these new and revised HKFRSs consistently throughout both

years.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

3.

ERAERMBREERN( R
M| EZEL])
BEREGHMAG((BAGHMAE)EMR
M IEFR] REER] 2 AU EIRE AL -
ZEEARAEEB2015F4 A1 BFL%A

S HEER - RBER2NZEFLEE
MBmEmNs  AEBEERMEFEER
FNFTE L EFT REERT 2 B AR
HAER -

AEE L EIIBAEATIIEEMERRE
BHF ] R R B M B IRE LR :

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BANBREENFEIR  SRIE

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts EBUBRERET  EPAONE?
with Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases® BAVBREEAZ 165 HE®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Accounting for Acquisitions of

fas
BEMBBREEANE 0% RARE: ERGAHE
FEMBREEAF 125 R
BRGNS BHNET]
EEMBRELAZ 0K RAZEEBERAR
BRETHEREBHNET AELELANEE
HERTE

FEMBBREENE NS WEBAELRE &M

Interests in Joint Operations’ MEE]
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue BANBREENE ST,  RERANBREEY
from Contracts with Customers? i) FRREANNE?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’ BASHES1RMET  BEE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BEASHENE 16 RAS BENERBHEZ RS
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation' ERp I ERE 0 CH] by
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants' BASHES16RRES BE: £EMHEYN
and HKAS 41 SEHERIE 41 BT
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate BBQHREUETROET] BUMBRRA EDE
Financial Statements'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BANBREEANE]  AAMBESER2012F

HKFRSs 20122014 Cycle'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

F014FRM FEAE

v M20164F 1 A1 Bk 2 B FRIARFE B

R
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 2 M20184F 1 A1 Ak 2 B FIARFE EAA
E0
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 3 MR2019F 1 A1 Bk 2 BRI FE HRE
E
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 4 REETHHSERHAZ EFEHMA
determined 3
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ —Z—

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

3.

ERERE! H&iﬁ%éﬁﬁlﬂfﬁ\iﬁ
P REER D)

BRAMBHREERNF MR [/

TA]
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the BBY 5 RS 2RI 2 957 (7R 2009 & 4845)

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and (b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant to the Group
are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

SIAEREEDBERIENTRE - BH
BTSSR FE 9T E 1R 2010 F 45 F]

LBEEEEeMEE E’J/\*E&u‘f'imﬁiﬁ
KR I EREIRE - WH 2013 F 4L #

B5] UBEEE—RE e ;ﬂwﬁiﬁ
TE o PR2014F M 2 BB M HMELRE
9B —HEBFIIRAEZNA (@B H SR
BEZREREROBEAE THEGKT
B3| A [EmEM 2 ERESRAFESER]
(MEBEMEEWREATEIER]FE
185 A EMEIEREELBRISET ©

HAKBRB BBV BRESEAF IR
ZEBERERRE:

BEGTEAFE RS T A - B LKt
EHREARWTE SRR %mﬂé?‘ﬁéﬂﬂz
B A FEFE - B8 T HE
xE'EMZHXé.\%’Uﬁ%mﬁ’ﬂ%i’%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ&%
BRERR/XNAERAEEASHON B
BHNRERNEFRE - —BRRERE
HAR 4 RIS IR SR ANFT 8 - RE N RE
BRESNEERERMESHEE X
BEARBAEZEB IR  UREKIKRR
SREERMELAZRSRAERNA
EMHAEERNENEZEBHTE BB
BEMPEKSERAFEIRZTAE -
PAEEMEBREMBRARENELRES

principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All HRI & R R A T EETE o b - Big
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at EAMEHREEDFEIN BRI ARA

their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial instruments. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until
a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

3.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3. FERAEEMBEREEAN(EFS
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) MR EER ) @)

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with % 7 Bt W#&%L‘%E\'J F 155K B
Customers (Continued) & H R (8

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

%%Eﬁ‘%#&%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%wsﬁﬁﬂ%bﬁ ARE
B8 P HE AR P L R B P SR R B IR TS
MRS BRAERMRZEEREMARR
BZEFERNREARESHNKE - AR
e ZEASIAERRENDESR -

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer . F—H: BAEEPIIVHEL

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the . FZH . BHAEHNFTREHNET
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price . F=F: EEXRHE

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance e FNH: BRHIBHOMEASHNFTH
obligations in the contract BAEE

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity o FhY: REBTHKEHNRTR(K
satisfies a performance obligation L) R

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a RIEBEB BV BREERFE 155 0 BEMNT

performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive

REKEAE(HBL) K - IR ERNE
TN E MR (125 SE TR
FRERWKE - BEVEREERIE 1555

guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific E R RIE R BRIR 7 A I A E B i 8 15
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by gl o fbAN - BBEMBEREERFE 15K EK
HKFRS 15. B ARHKRER

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases

3.

ERERBVBREEN(EFS
PR EEA D) @)

BEMBHREEANZ16REE
ERMEREENE 169 OHERZE
RRREERIERE17HREE  SIAE
—&mA@ﬁﬁﬁﬁMigﬁ%mAﬁ%

with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying BHRBA1I2EANEERREERAE
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is FEBEEEEERE - EBmE - %;%E?f
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right BWMEERF 16 R ERFABAER —ER

to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.

REGEAHEBAHEEENEREEER —
EREREXNHEEFRERBNEEARE -

Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the Eit - FAABERGEAEEENTERE
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also EBBHNE UHKHEEEBEERERES A

classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 16 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 16 until the Group
performs a detailed review.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., BEREFBE®)

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued) ReELE )

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company $/&ET§%’%WJ%&T 7 1) 42 B {50 R 2 5 Y
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the BRALGA A BRI PR I A AR AR I
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income RA AR o El\ni%ﬁﬁ s - BEFEMKIES
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during ERBARIZWARBAIRART A E
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or SEGIERHRAAGEER AN ER
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the W&k BEARATBEGHZMEBARA
Company gains control until the date when the Company 1k o

ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MEDZ e EAR 2P ERERED
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in R FHeTHREARER 2 @5BUR
line with the Group’s accounting policies. ER—%-

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ —Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

4.

BEARETHE®)
BREEZRE®E
MEREBBRAGRE  BE BEE
SR EREET G AKEEE M
W% 2 REETSRANERAEER
T R RS B R T 2

determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the HEE o REEIE 2 BB T) Bl i 18 2 P T
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is R o

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments TRT A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at

TREERERABREEERKNASTA
BRURSCHIRT R T RS RERR ©

ERMEERCBBBEVNIRAFEHNE -

fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the WS ITeMmEEN SR BEEEEN
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are R AR P ERFEMA SR EEL

added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets

THEENATE INEREEXTH

or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. BEMNAFENR(RERME)
Financial assets SREE

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and rEENEREEDBRERKER
receivables and held-to-maturity investments. The classification ARFEREHRZE - pEET S vaﬂﬁﬁz
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and MERARME  WHRBEAERRERT -
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way NERARABERHEEHEENARS R
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and R EmARIUBRER - LERATXEE

derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

96 AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016

HHETHERERBET IS ZRARE
PIREBRAXNEECCHMEERS -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AR E BTSRRIt

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit placed for a life insurance policy, trade
receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition,
held-to-maturity investments (including investments in bonds)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ —Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEREFBEE®)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) T HE

Financial assets (Continued) SMEE (,%E)

Impairment of financial assets 2 EEAERE

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at TRMEERSHRERRURETREITT
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are e MEREEIFERET  SREEND
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence FFARRE@RER -BREZERY) LR

that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

TREERBENEMHMERTE AT

BEERIEDHE -

BENEEREEE

e BUAIRSZHFEBREAMBAE
B3k

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in ° B BIAn R A e K R B Bk AN & 1~
interest or principal payments; or -1

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amounts are reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, amount due to a
shareholder, borrowings and bank overdraft) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Rental income from machinery leasing under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Operating service income and other service income are
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statements of financial position and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ —Z—

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in

4.

EXEHBE®

HiIE ()
EERBEABEREEY S BRMMIERAE
EESRBERRN DR EELEERE

which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to BEREETENRIEL
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except BIEA R REFR B IR B N HER - BRIER

when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
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statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign BERSHEHRENERBLEARER
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the ZYEEAIET) - WAKRXIEB&RSF
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing A ERIAE - M B A 2 B R K0

at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as obligations under
finance leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful
lives and related depreciation charges for the property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions
and may vary significantly as a result of technical innovations
and keen competition from competitors, resulting in higher
depreciation charge and/or write-off or write-down of technically
obsolete assets when residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowance for doubtful debts

Allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective
evidence that the recoverability of trade receivables due from
customers becomes doubtful. As at 31 March 2016, the
carrying amounts of trade receivables are HK$71,185,000
(2015: HK$53,631,000) respectively, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$4,767,000 (2015: HK$3,073,000). The
calculation of the allowance requires management to make
assumptions and to apply judgement regarding historical
settlement experience, debt ageing, financial status of
customers and general economic conditions. The directors of
the Company believe that there will not be a material change in
the estimates or assumptions which are used in the calculations
of impairment loss of trade receivables. However, when the
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, an additional impairment loss may have to be
recognised.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue represents the net amounts received or
receivable for machinery leased, goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
returns.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

AEFTEEMNEERR @)

RERHEE

e BB R ENT P WEAE ZEIR
FRIEH) BT [B] 14 1 H &R - BIET IR R AR
& M2016F3 A31 H * B EWFIAEMN
BR 18 5 5!l A71,185,0007% 7T (20154 ¢
53,631,000/ 7T ) © B o B 0 Bk R &
B 154,767,000 7T (20154 : 3,073,000
BIL) c AT ERERFEEEERBTLE
K5 BIERER  BEP2U BN RS
KEREIEHRERAE - BRRES
s ARG EESERFBREBEZ
HEr Rk BRKEBEMERES - A
hﬁ% ER AR RFBERER R BB ATE

© BIA] e /B MR EESNRE 18 -

Wz K& 7 BB E

AR E s B IE R E BT LA
W R RIR R B IR R
BFE (R REN) -

REBOKE DT

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZT—hHF

HK$’°000 HK$'000

F&T FAxT

Leasing income of machinery HH 7 A AR L A 171,777 161,660
Sales of machinery and parts HWwm R B EE 36,957 38,530
Operating service income e ARSI A 20,329 16,926
Other service income E RIS UA 10,278 11,109
239,341 228,225
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIHER @
(Continued)
For management purpose, the Group is organised based on its BEEREAR AEBIREERTHELE -
business activities. The Group determines its operating AEERMEER IDETHEED I
segments based on these business activities that are regularly HERFLEREE (AARATNITES)FE
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, i.e. the HAZEE) - A BB R MG RIR -
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments BREMmME  AEEREDBM B RS %ER
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows: FEERALS LN EHMRLED AT
Leasing — Leasing of machinery, and related operating HE — #WEE URBBELER
and other services H At R 75
Trading —  Sales of machinery and parts, and related BE — HRETUHEEUARBBEL
operating and other services 2 R Efth BR 75
Segment information about these reportable and operating EELER2REEEDIHNKEEERR
segments is presented below: TX275 :
Segment revenue and results D Eb R A
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ2016 331 HILFE
Leasing Trading Total
HE BB st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET FET
Revenue W=
Segment revenue from RESMNFE P Y5 50Uk a
external customers 202,280 37,061 239,341
Results B4
Segment results DEBELE 60,322 10,932 71,254
Unallocated income RO BLUA 410
Unallocated expenses RAOBCR X (42,634)
Consolidated profit before RE B AR S R A& A
taxation of the Group 29,030
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEKkDHMEHR =)

(Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) B K AR |
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZE2015F3A31 HLFEE
Leasing Trading Total
Gk 88 #EtT
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT
Revenue Wz
Segment revenue from PNERIS Y pon g
external customers 189,350 38,875 228,225
Results E
Segment results HELFAA 58,757 7,915 66,672
Unallocated income R EEBA 472
Unallocated expenses KOBHX (15,672)
Consolidated profit before REBIERE BT AR A
taxation of the Group 51,472
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating AZ2HEEED NG A BEEAREER
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies 4T SETIER — B e DEEER
described in note 4. Segment results represent the profit earned %ﬁa‘ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂiﬁ‘ﬂ%ﬁﬂ (HER B U - FEIEUL
by each segment without allocation of interest income, sundry CRRMRA - ETR X R RITERAX
income, corporate income, listing expenses and central $%%EE) CWRERTEREEEREEN
administration expenses. This is the measure reported to the TR LA RERKTHERR -
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the PMWEERAEMEZR  RARZEE
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating BUETHERTEREERREEER
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and DB R FRIFTSE ©

assessment of performance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2016

H o EE R
BZE2016F3A31HILEE

Leasing Trading Unallocated Total
HE BEE R B st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET FHE T TFHE T TFET
Amounts included inthe  BIERHBLETE
measure of segment At
results:
Allowance for doubtful EERREREFR
debts recognised, net 1,694 - - 1,694
Depreciation of property, ¥ - BE &
plant and equipment RETE 29,597 21 1,510 31,128
Gain on disposal of LEYE  BEKX
property, plant and FE U
equipment 2,365 6 - 2,371
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BZ2015F3 831 BLFE
Leasing Trading Unallocated Total
HE 5= ROER #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Amounts included inthe  BIENDBLETE
measure of segment Enferx-c I
results:
Allowance for doubtful ERRRREE T
debts recognised, net 1,772 3 = 1,775
Depreciation of property, #1% &= &
plant and equipment BT E 23,235 74 1,035 24,344
Gain on disposal of HEWME - BE R
property, plant and Bl
equipment 4,127 54 - 4,181
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkIHBEXR @)

(Continued)

Geographical information Hh 38 E

The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived AEBRBINPEFMUZEBENTEESR
BRBPINES Wik B et e

determined based on the location of customers. TE °

from customers located in Hong Kong and Macau, which is

2016 2015
—EB—XKEF —F—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TAT

External revenue: GhERU S
Hong Kong B 195,988 187,344
Macau P! 43,353 40,881
239,341 228,225

The Group’s non-current assets based on the geographical
location of the owners of these assets are as follows:

AEENFRBEE (RULFEEREEN
PRAEMIE B &) ST

Non-current assets (Note)

FRBEE (ML)
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—R4E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Hong Kong a5 157,324 137,512
Macau SR PY 12,482 122
169,806 137,634

M FRBEETEESRREFRRBRY
¥ BELERENES

Note: Non-current assets excluded deposit placed for a life insurance
policy and deposits for purchase of property, plant and
equipment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDMER @

(Continued)
Information about major customers BETEZERFMER
Revenue from customers during the year contributing over 10% REEZEAEBE B S 10% HE P =
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: ol T
2016 2015
ZE-REF —E—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Customer A ZFA 26,086 N/A!
L The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the f HZE2015F3A31 B IEFE - HEKZ
total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015. WG AN S E B U 25 R IR 10% ©
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HfA
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interest income from: FMEWARE :
— bank deposits — RITEXR 8 3
— investment in bonds — EHEE 162 4
— deposit placed for a life — SRREFRK
insurance policy 95 79
Storage income EFUWA 1,659 1,101
Sundry income HMETEUT A 628 878
2,552 2,065
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &Z —ZF— < XF=H=+—H
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES Hibz R E1E
2016 2015
—E—RF T —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAxT
Allowance for doubtful debts EREARERE T
recognised, net (1,694) (1,775)
Exchange (loss) gain, net PE 3 (E518) ek F 5 (183) 219
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BB RS EkE
plant and equipment 2,371 4,181
494 2,625
9. FINANCE COSTS A& KA
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Interest on borrowings BT B 1,665 1,005
Interest on finance leases BEHEERN B 24 108
1,689 1,113
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10. FAIEBIRAX

2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT

Current tax HHATIA
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH 3,145 1,573
Macau Complementary Income Tax SRPIETIS M 7E B 1,532 2,231
4,677 3,804
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFECBEEE) BETR (110) 485
Deferred taxation (note 24) IREBIIE (fisE24) 3,540 4,258
8,107 8,547

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

For the subsidiary registered in Macau, Macau Complementary
Income Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated assessable
profit exceeding MOPB600,000 after the deduction of dividend
paid for both years. During the year, MOP600,000 (2015:
MOP600,000) dividend was paid by the subsidiary registered in
Macau and the amount was deducted from the assessable
profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

0. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRBHAX )
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

FEMBRAXAIRE T XAENESE
o N E Al 2 B a3k P YRR A BT s A (F B

loss and other comprehensive income as follows: P

2016 2015
ZE-REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Profit before taxation B Al 29,030 51,472
Tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% 16.5% 3 FA Tt 2R B0 Tt 78 4,790 8,493
Tax effect of expenses not deductible WHIEE M T HBREAYA
for tax purpose s & 4,323 658
Tax effect of income not taxable BT B 8RR BAAEY
for tax purpose Fifs s & (1) (14)
Tax effect of tax exemption under BIERF S M AR HIER RN
Macau Complimentary income tax RIS (192) (192)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FHABRERERZ BIEER
recognised = )
(Over)underprovision in prior years BEFECRERE) BETE (110) 485
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiary REMaERERLL 2B AR
operating in other jurisdiction ZTRBETE (631) (837)
Others Hh (72) (41)
Income tax expense for the year FEMREHAY 8,107 8,547
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &% —NFE=H=1T—H

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZTRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived B THEERNFE @A :
at after charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) E2E=Me (HE12) 4,096 1,004
Other staff costs: Hith 8 TR :
— Salaries, allowances and — BB - R R EAEF
other benefits 36,914 31,734
— Retirement benefits scheme RREFFT 2R ()
contributions (Note) 1,326 1,086
38,240 32,820
Total staff costs |8 TR 42,336 33,824
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gl 1,436 291
Cost of inventories recognised as ERIER X MFEER A
expenses 23,243 28,542
Depreciation of property, Y BRENEEINE
plant and equipment 31,128 24,344
Operating lease rentals in respect HEEMWEEHERS
of rented premises 4,379 3,784
Note: M5k

The Group has established a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable by the
Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly relevant
income capped at HK$30,000 per month (increased from HK$25,000
per month with effect from 1 June 2014).

The total costs charged to profit or loss for the year of approximately
HK$1,398,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,096,000), comprised
approximately HK$72,000 and HK$1,326,000 (2015: approximately
HK$10,000 and HK$1,086,000) in directors’ emoluments and other
staff costs respectively, and represented contributions paid or payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period. At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &Z —ZF— < XF=H=+—H

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The executive directors of the Company were appointed on 11
June 2015, the non-executive director was appointed on 10
December 2015 and the independent non-executive directors
were appointed on 17 March 2016. Details of the emoluments
paid or payable to the directors of the Company (including
emoluments for services as employees of the Group prior to
becoming directors of the Company) by the Group are as

12. % THRABRESHH

BRRMNAITEENR2015F6 711 HESR
£ MIERTEER2015F12 108 &
ZE - BYIERITESZAIR2016F3 A 17
BEZT AKBEENHENT BEAQA
EZMHFWN(BERKRE BARESRME
RAEEESRERGOEI) &I OT

follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Directors’ fees EFE0E = =
Other emoluments: E b 3 -
Basic salaries, allowances and EAFE  FR R EMER
other benefits 3,624 582
Discretionary bonus E‘J TBAEAL 400 412
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R 1@ FII5H &4 2% 72 10
4,006 1,004

No directors waived any emoluments for both years.

RMEFE - BEEEREEAHH -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12. EE - THERBRREEFH =

Other emoluments

Hitn g B
Basic
salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and other Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonus contributions Total
BEXEE
ERRHEM EHREF
EZHe &7 s FTEIMR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FET THT THT
(Note ii
(P i)
For the year ended HZ2016F3831H
31 March 2016 EEE
Executive directors: WIES:
Lau Pong Sing 2 3Bk 1,763 220 36 2,019
Chan Kit Mui, Lina B218 1,861 180 36 2,077
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Kitagawa Ken blallk: - - - -
Independent non-executive BUERITES:
directors:
Li Ping Chi, Ben FRE - - - -
Siu Chak Yu, Simon BET - - - -
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ER - - - -
3,624 400 72 4,096
For the year ended BZE201553831H
31 March 2015 LEE
Executive directors: WIES:
Lau Pong Sing (Note ) BIF05K (Fi3ED) 270 255 5 530
Chan Kit Mui, Lina (Note ii B2 (i) 312 157 5 474
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Kitagawa Ken bl Ik - - - -
Independent non-executive BUERTES -
directors:
Li Ping Chi, Ben & = = = =
Siu Chak Yu, Simon FETF = = = =
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond R - - - -
582 412 10 1,004
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

Directors’ emoluments of HK$931,000 for the year ended 31
March 2015 were borne by a related company and charged to
the Group through management fee paid to that related company
(see note 32).

i Directors’ emoluments of HK$631,000 for the year ended 31
March 2015 were borne by a related company and charged to
the Group through management fee paid to that related company
(see note 32).

ii. The discretionary bonus is mainly determined on the basis of the
Group’s and individual performance.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group.

Lau Pong Sing is also the chief executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments during both years.

12. B - THREARBRREESTMN &
B -

HZE201543A31 B ILFEMNE = &
931,000 o —E B A RIEE - BB
NFZEBAREEEARANEERER(E
MiE32) o

i, HZE201563 A31 B IEFE RN E = 5
631,000 0 —E B QA RAE BB
NFZBEHAREEEARAEERI(E
MEE32) °

ii. BEEAEZUREREEREAARRR
EMET -

ERHTEEHMOIEREEARR LA
SEEHRHRBAER

BIFKINARNRBITHAR  EEEY
EEHMEEEEAITHARIRERES
M o

RMEFE  THREHNESHEREE
EE TN

ZERRNFFER/ DEAEEERARAT

119



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
rE IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
for the year, two (2015: two) of them were directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are paid by the Group or
included in management fee charged to the Group by a related
company. The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three)

individuals were as follows:

AEEAKERSH

(20155F : MB)ATA
BN AN EE S et A — I REEE A Rl A
AEEHKRMEBEEERN - 7 ~=%(2015
F =) ATHFHEINAT

12. EE - THABREETM

MAERALTHMRA
ERAESH

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT

Basic salaries and allowance and BEAXFHE R REMEFR
other benefits 2,001 1,968
Discretionary bonus BIEIEAL 324 250
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & /R#@ Il 521 2x 54 52
2,379 2,270

The emoluments of these employees were individually less than

HK$1,000,000 for both years.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

13. DIVIDEND 13. BRE
2016 2015
—E-—RE —T—hEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
Dividend recognised as distributions of the A% 8 MR IEA R TIRAREZ
Company (2015: AP Rentals Limited) (20154 : REHHEE
during the year BRATE) K DI
2016 Interim — HK cent 40 per share 2016 FH Bl 8 — 227,378,000
on 27,378,000 shares of the Company &R FIRRMD &R 40781l E
(2015: 2015 Interim — HK cent 73 per (20154F : 2015 FH AR 8
share on 27,378,000 shares of — 1%£27,378,000 [X SEFE A E
AP Rentals Limited) BRABRMNEBR7IBE) 11,000 20,000
No final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 HZE201543 A31 HIEFEZ R BN
has been paid during the year. The directors of the Company BARFEEIRN - KRR EEZH TR
do not recommend a final dividend in respect of the year ended HZE2016F3 A31 HILFE Z RS -
31 March 2016.
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF|
The calculation of the basic earnings per share for both years is Y F & B AR AR 2 F TH R 5% Mt 5% 35 5F it
based on the profit attributable to owners of the Company and HWERNEETER2014F4 81 BAER
on 712,800,000 shares in issue during both years on the %%$"ﬂ%ﬁ)\ﬂﬁ£iﬁ?&ﬂ&$¢?ﬂ%
assumption that the capitalisation issued as detailed in note 35 TR & B & 712,800,000 A A+ E
has been effective on 1 April 2014.
No diluted earnings per share is presented for both years as ME2INZMEFENSREERFN R
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. A2 E|BELSDETLRAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BMERRE

122

Furniture
Plant and Office and Leasehold Motor
machinery  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Tools Total
HER HE
BEREE BAZERE BERE  NEEE "E I8 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET AT TEx TEx TAT TR
COST BA
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 51H 128,670 1,060 60 2,134 11,226 527 144177
Additions NE 65,126 228 B 1,096 2,856 86 69,397
Disposals & (13,768) = - - (3,909 - (17,677)
At 31 March 2015 201553 A 318 179,928 1,288 65 3,830 10,173 613 195,897
Additions NE 76,027 973 - 1,227 2,135 785 81,147
Disposals & (23,530) (1) - - (973) - (24,504)
At 31 March 2016 201653 A 31 B 232,425 2,260 65 5,057 11,335 1,398 252,540
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2014 R2014E4 518 35,802 520 60 929 4,554 334 42,199
Provided for the year ~ FE R 21,174 198 - 570 2,308 99 24,344
Eliminated on disposals & # 34 (65,749) - - - (2,531) - (8,280)
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3A31R 51,227 718 60 1,499 4,326 433 58,263
Provided for the year ~ FE e # 27,709 242 1 927 2,053 196 31,128
Eliminated on disposals &k i (5,831) 1) - - (825) - (6,657)
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H 73,105 959 61 2,426 5,554 629 82,734
CARRYING VALUES  ERHEME
At 31 March 2016 201653 A31 B 159,320 1,301 4 2,631 5,781 769 169,806
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31R 128,701 570 &) 2,331 5,847 180 137,634
As at 31 March 2016, motor vehicles of the Group amounting MR2016F3A3IH KX & B © 8 A

to HK$854,000 (2015: HK$1,338,000) were held under finance

leases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE @
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are ME - BERKEN FMIBEIRTAFEE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per LERAERENE -
annum:
Plant and machinery 15% to 30% [R5 Re ik 15% = 30%
Others 20% EHh 20%
DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE 16. ERRERFER
POLICY
2016 2015
—E-RF ZE—AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHT
Deposit placed for a life insurance policy EMREFR 2,494 2,437

The Group entered into a life insurance policy (the “Policy”) with
an insurance company to insure a director of the Company.
Under the Policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is a
subsidiary of the Company and the total insured sum is
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,757,000).

EEERRBRARZ] —MHERERE (R
g EAR—RERRR - RER
B I ARREFEAR BERARNWE
Aa - T ARIZ{REE A 1,000,000 % 7T (A%
497,757,000 7T) °
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16.

17.

B M HRR M T

NE=ZA=1—H

DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE 16. SlRREFH @)
POLICY (Continued)
At inception of the Policy, the Group is required to make a REAMRER - BREASNN—2B/EN
single upfront payment of US$322,000 (equivalent to 322,000 s 18 & R 42,497,000 7%
approximate HK$2,497,000) which includes a fixed policy ) BRETHERBRIEFR - BARBRAX
premium charge and a deposit. Monthly policy expense and FRBEFEEENRBHRNSRBRENH
insurance charges will be incurred over the insurance period BREE - REAFENEFXT4.2% 8
with reference to the terms set out in the Policy. The insurance REFERF EQF  WREERREABH
company will pay the Group a guaranteed interest rate of 4.2% NBFXNAZOR(ZERENER
for the first year and a variable return per annum afterwards 2%) cRE X RRBFEBNREN
(with guaranteed minimum interest rate of 2%) during the TR EMHRNREBEER - M FRE
effective period of the Policy. The policy premium, expense and NEBRMNEEXREBEKATER BS
insurance charges are recognised in profit or loss over the E A pER ER 2R R - WHERRRBE
expected life of the Policy and the deposit placed is carried at HREEE(RENRBABENZTEETR
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group BWHBRRERT MREFEEMET) &
may request full surrender of the Policy at any time and receive BE - MRE—Z2E+/N\AREFE 2MH
cash back based on the value of the Policy at the date of BR BSEEHEANETCERFTEE -
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the policy expense
and insurance premium charge. If such withdrawal is made
between the first to eighteenth policy year, a pre-determined
specified surrender charge will be imposed on the Group.
The directors of the Company consider that the possibility of BERAESZRANEZE+ N\ERESF
terminating the Policy during the first eighteen years was low EAKLIERER A MR - T ASRER
and the expected life of the life insurance policy remains TERT A M B B R RS T
unchanged since its initial recognition.
INVENTORIES 17. F8
2016 2015
—E—XREF —RF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
THT FHAT
Finished goods RUBK S 6,898 12,461

124 AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED / Annual Report 2016



B M HRR T

NFE=HA=+—H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

18.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ —Z—

ESEWFE ZHERESR

PREPAYMENTS b= |

2016 2015

—E—RE —hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THTT

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 75,952 56,704
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIREE (4,767) (3,073)
71,185 53,631

Deposits and prepayments e RIENFKIE 2,445 3,297
Deferred listing expenses ERE ETRS 3,951 -
77,581 56,928

The Group allows an average credit period of O to 45 days to its
trade customers. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group makes enquiries to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed annually. Trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are due from
creditworthy customers.

As at 31 March 2016, included in trade receivables are
HK$1,015,000 (2015: nil) and HK$2,573,000 (2015:
HK$688,000) receivables from a shareholder and a subsidiary
of a shareholder of the Company respectively.

ERERTHESIEFPNFHEEHRO
E45H - REMEMHEFA - E&KHE
EHEANFEEERPONEEER I
BEFAERFERSE FTEABNRES
FHEEM - REHIRENE F B UK
BEHRBERARINES °

MR2016F3A31H - BSENFIBBIERE
W BEAR—2RERENMB QRS 5
1,015,000 7T (2015 4F : &) } 2,573,000
70 (2015 4F : 688,000/87T) KIFKIA °
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 18.

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivable, net of
allowance, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
each reporting period:

ESRKFE BRERFBEMNRK
I8 ()
TEREIIE S ENEIE R BE) W
DI - REREHRIRBZEH27 -

2016 2015

—EB-RF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHTT

Within 30 days 30BN 15,603 14,536
31 to 60 days 31£60H 17,287 21,864
61 to 90 days 61E90H 7,603 7,234
91 to 180 days 91&E180H 16,128 1,690
Over 180 days B @180 H 14,564 8,307
71,185 53,631

As at 31 March 2016, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$64,305,000 (2015: HK$41,472,000) which were past due
for which the Group has not provided for allowance for doubtful
debts. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no further provision is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

18. EZ EWFRIE -
I8 (&)
B AR i R R B 0 5 FE Mk T8 7 BR e

BEREMNK

impaired:
2016 2015
—E-—RE —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Overdue: B2
1 to 60 days 1260H 27,145 22,806
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 7,260 6,537
91 to 120 days 91%E120H 6,018 432
121 to 180 days 121 £180H 8,924 5,233
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 11,745 6,464
Over 365 days HB3iE 365 H 3,213 -
64,305 41,472
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts were as follows: RERESHHTMT :
2016 2015
—E2-REF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR FET
At beginning of the year F47) 3,073 1,298
Impairment loss recognised, net BRERRBEEERFE 1,694 1,775
At end of the year FR 4,767 3,073

19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/BANK

OVERDRAFT

As at 31 March 2016, bank balances carry interest at prevailing

market interest rates of 0.01% per annum (2015: ranging from

0.01% to 3.2% per annum).

As at 31 March 2016, bank overdraft carries interest at market

rate of 4.75% per annum.

19. RITEBRES BITEX
R2016F3 A31 H ' HERITHEHKERK
M5 F FI K 50.01% (20154 : FF K5

0.01% E3.2% T) o

R20164E3 A31 H ' FEBITHE TS
FERNRBAT5% °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZ R EMENFE
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade payables B 5N 31,093 39,195
Accrued expenses S 6,944 6,324
Other payables Hfth fEAT 5RIE 16,142 4,310
Deposits received B Wik 1,006 3,961
55,185 53,790
As at 31 March 2016, included in trade payables is M2016F 3 A31H » BEHEMNFIBERIEE
HK$27,784,000 (2015: HK$26,926,000) payable to a subsidiary ¥ BT —ZBRENKE QB NE
of a shareholder of the Company. 27,784,000/ JT(20154F : 26,926,000
JL) °
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented TREVNNRSHREHARE ZEMNFRIBBNER
based on the invoice date at the end of each reporting period: BT RBEHHES
2016 2015
—E-XRF S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Within 30 days 30HA 5,813 6,998
31 to 60 days 31E£60H 14,559 10,196
61 to 90 days 61290 H 672 12,847
91 to 180 days 91 & 180 H 4,515 2,134
Over 180 days B3m 180 H 5,534 7,020
31,093 39,195
The credit period on trade payables is ranging from 0 to 180 B o EMNFEMNEEHHOE180H (2015
days (2015: 0 to 180 days). F:0E180H) % -
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21. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 21.
As at 31 March 2015, the amount due to a shareholder was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22.

B —aRERERIE
R2015F 3 A31 H » BN —ZRERIAIL
IR - R B RARBREERE -

MEHEEME

Minimum lease

Present value of

minimum lease

payments payments
REHESR REHAENREE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HFE ZE-—RFE —ZT—hE
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHET FHET FAxT
Within one year —FR 292 502 285 478
More than one year but not ZR—F - BRZHRWRE
exceeding two years 46 305 45 297
More than two years but not  ZRAME - BFRZRRE
exceeding five years - 45 = 45
338 852 330 820
Less: Future finance charges & : SR 3R Ah & & F (8) (32) = -
Present value of lease HESMTRE
obligations 330 820 330 820
Less: Amount due for W —FREIBNEE
settlement within FIE(RREAE
one year (shown under FrR)
current liabilities) (285) (478)
Amount due shown under RIERBEEF T
non-current liabilities B HARIE 45 342
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22. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 22, BEHESEE W)
(Continued)
The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery under EXERERENERRES THRE K
finance leases. The original lease term entered by the Group for W e 1201643 A31H ' BEHEBEFEIL
the leases outstanding as at 31 March 2016 are all ranged from RERBENFRRBERRELH1E2F
1 to 2 years (2015: 1 to 2 years). Interest rates underlying all (20154 - 1ZE24F) - P20165F3 A31H -
obligations under finance leases as at 31 March 2016 are fixed BEMEHEMBETHNHEBIERSS
at respective contract dates at 2.3% per annum (2015: 2% to HBHAEEFFEE2.3%(20154F 2%
2.3% per annum). FE23%TE) o
The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by EEEREREAENTETIALHEADN
the lessors’ charge over the leased assets. HEBEEM
23. BORROWINGS 23. AN
2016 2015
—E—XREF ZE—AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THT FHAT
Secured borrowings BHEFEK 75,243 27,646
Unsecured borrowings IR IS 3R - 1,364
75,243 29,010
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23. BORROWINGS (Continued) 23. B4
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—RF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Carrying amounts of borrowings that do £/ & 7] BE ks Z G E (7B
not contain a repayable on demand REINER BRNTEEEE
clause and are repayable based on HEIEZMERZREE :
the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements:
Within one year —FR 517 766
More than one year but not ZR—F  BTZRMF
exceeding two years 44 800
More than two years but not ZIRME  BETNEZREF
exceeding five years = 68
561 1,634
Carrying amounts of borrowings that B EEREREZGETER
contain a repayable on demand clause  (3&iEEHE &R ) MIRE IR
(shown under current liabilities) and B TaEEE B M
the maturity analysis based on the MEEES A
scheduled repayment set out in the
loan agreements are:
Within one year —FER 35,356 11,230
More than one year but not ZR—F  BTZRWF
exceeding two years 21,668 8,158
More than two years but not LM BRZRAF
exceeding five years 17,658 7,988
74,682 27,376
75,243 29,010
Less: Amounts due within one year W B AERT SRR AIFRIE
shown under current liabilities (75,199) (28,142)
Amounts shown under IERE B ERTRAFIE
non-current liabilities 44 868
The fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings at 31 March 2016 201643 A31 A + EEFI LK ZEF=E
carry interest ranging from 1.28% to 4% per annum (2015: BT B EE 51.28% % 4% (2015
1.28% to 3.25% per annum). F FEE1.28%F3.25%) °
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24,

25.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Group in respect of accelerated tax depreciation and
movements thereon during both years:

24, ELEHRBRE
TRESIRFERN BEERMRBAR
EE@RNEBEEHAA E RS

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

IEEBLIEITE

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 April 2014 K2014F4 A1 H 12,586
Charge to profit or loss SEEEREIES 4,258
At 31 March 2015 201563 A31H 16,844
Charge to profit or loss BEZNER 3,540
At 31 March 2016 R20164F3 A31H 20,384

ISSUED CAPITAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11
June 2015 with an authorised share capital of 380,000,000
shares of HK$0.001 each. On the same day, 1 share of
HK$0.001 was allotted and credited as issued at par.

On 21 July 2015, further 27,377,999 shares of HK$0.001 each
were issued in connection with the Group Reorganisation.

On 17 March 2016, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 divided into
380,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each to
HK$10,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each.

Issued capital of the Group as at 31 March 2015 represents the
paid up capital of AP Rentals Limited, while issued capital of the
Group as at 31 March 2016 represents the paid up capital of
the Company.
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25. BRITRAE
BAFR2015F6 411 BRAFASESEM
BT 0 R TE IR AN & 380,000,000 AR A 17 -
MRE{EO0.001 BT - WE—H » EEE1R
E{E0.001 B G, + WARIIIEEIZE
BT »

MEBMEAMS - N2015F7H218° R
4N 8% 727,377,999 % & % T {8 0.001 % 7T
KRR ©

R2016F3A17H - BRI URERE
# 380,000 7T © % £380,000,000%F %
0.001 7% 7T &9 & 38 A% 3 h1 & 10,000,000 7
7T * 9 4 10,000,000,000 &A% 0.001 4 TTHY
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26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 26. EARIZHMBMRRER EA

THE COMPANY AND RESERVES OF THE A=
COMPANY
2016
—E—-XREF
HK$’000
FHET
Non-current Asset kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KB A RAIRE 129,821
Current Assets RBEE
Other receivables E b likIE 4,003
Amounts due from subsidiaries L NG ¢ 8,021
Bank balances and cash RITHRBEIRE 267
12,291
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b 5RIE 8,961
Net Current Assets RBEEFE 3,330
Net Assets BEEZFE 133,151
Capital and Reserves EARR#E
Issued capital LAZE 1T AR 27
Reserves i 133,124
Total Equity R 133,151
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B ZE=ZF— ~F=H=1+—H

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 26. EQRIZHBEMRRERR BEAQ
THE COMPANY AND RESERVES OF THE CEIPA-1 1€ )
COMPANY (Continued)
The followings are the movements of the Company’s reserves TREFIH#2015F6 511 8 (AL B ER)
for the period from 11 June 2015 (date of incorporation) to 31 F2016F3 A1 HEA BRRFEEZE
March 2016: g :
Share Retained
premium profits Total
& 105 8 REB =R st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 11 June 2015 20156 A11H
(date of incorporation) (GRS B ER) = - -
Profit and total comprehensive B A% F1) & 48 2 Uz
income for the period - 14,330 14,330
Dividend recognised as RN IR S (FEE13)
distribution (note 13) - (11,000) (11,000)
Arising from reorganisation = ERE 129,794 - 129,794
At 31 March 2016 K201643 A 31 H 129,794 3,330 133,124
27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EXEREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents, debts, amount due to a shareholder and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. dRITH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. ST EAER
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FRETT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash &z & EUl=IE (PIEH S &
and cash equivalents) REZEEY) 95,971 83,958
Financial liabilities THasE
Amortised cost BEEH AR AR 122,645 94,245
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. TRIAREEBZTRBE
policies
The major financial instruments of the Group include EEENTIESRTAOESRRE
deposit placed for a life insurance policy, trade T BHREWGIA - RITHERKLIR
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade payables, © - BHENFIA - BREE -
amount due to a shareholder, borrowings and bank ERRBITES - Bt SR T AR
overdraft. The risks associated with these financial 28 B | B B 4 T 95 R B (6 L B K
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest ﬂfﬁﬂ %) EERRBREKEBESE
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how o H# lelﬂﬁéﬁlkta?ﬂ 2 B BUER
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The §|JE’\‘"FK° ERRNE
management of the Group and the Company manages BEEENE ﬁf—‘lﬁl:ﬁﬂ © ERAY
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate R REREITEE BN -
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk
Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in
currencies which are different from the functional
currencies of the group entities and therefore the Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group currently

28. €@ T H(»)

b. 2RAEARERBZNMBEK
()
5 Ak
EHEER

BEREETRHMEZEREEEE
BHIGEEE TR At S5EE
ERONERR o BEE R FILEINE
OB o i BEEERIMNEE
EREERR - WK A F REEE BT

does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure if necessary.

BEARIMNER R o

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency RBERAR - EEEAINEGHERD
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of EEEEREKAEZERAAENT ¢
the Group at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZT—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Assets BE
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HIt 2,384 2,411
United States dollars (“US$”) =TT 2,600 15,172
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 76 634
Euro (“EUR”) BT 20 933
Liabilities =
Us$ US$ETT 2,031 11,893
EUR EUREIT 143 -
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity of the Group to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where the relevant
currencies strength 5% against HKS$. For a 5% weakening
of the relevant currencies strength 5% against HKS, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit.

ﬁﬂ!ﬂl/\\ ‘—‘/

b.

TR AR E IR B ZEREGR
(#)

HiEEE (&)

B E AT

TERFHY BEEEHBTHAEBING
P& 48 N & 1 % 5% M) 8= E © 5%
AENBOEBEEEBASRSINER
SRFTAMSUREL R  WRKRERE
JE /N L R m] BE B B AR A © SRR
EDMEBERRE BRAREEIN
BEHENEBIEE - WIAINEL R &
B)5% {E[E X A - TXHIEHETR
BAEEHETHER A% %
& R FHIE o 78 S KA TTE
KM% HEBRENEXES
RARMFE -

2016 2015

—E—RE —T—hF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FHBT FHBIT

JPY against HK$ HERBT 119 121
RMB against HK$ ARBHAT 4 32
EUR against HK$ BATH ST (6) 47

For the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
US$, since HK$ is currently pegged to US$, the
management considers that the exchange rate fluctuation
is not significant. Accordingly, no foreign currency
sensitivity analysis is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the US$.

UETFHENEREERBEMS
MR A ATRETHE - BEER
REXRFEHITEK Iltt]l,éﬁﬁ'dc%
TR BERTRBEINEGRED
i o
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

o}

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate borrowings. The management will
take appropriate measures to manage interest rate
exposure if interest rate fluctuates significantly. The
management considers the fair value interest rate risk to
the Group is insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to deposit placed for a life insurance policy,
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the banks’ respective HK$ Best
Lending Rate from the Group’s borrowings denominated
in HK$.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging
contracts or any other interest rate related derivative
financial instruments. However, management monitors
the Group’s related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure when
the need arises.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the risk is limited as
assessed by the management.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credlit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk as a substantial portion of its trade receivables
is generated from a limited number of customers. As at
31 March 2016, the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 34% (2015: 34%) of its trade
receivables respectively. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group had delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and deposit placed for a life
insurance policy is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institution with good reputation.

. emI AW
b. “RIEMEIEBENMBEK
(%)
EERB
AXSHAEBITELTS HEH
ERUBBAYBEEERRIES

BN IRAE SRR R 5
BEZEEEMmMESL

EEENEERRTIZRAESHEW

*”IEO f%lﬁﬁﬁ%qﬂﬁ’ﬂéﬁm
B REKXIHHE S EKFIBE
EQ%B&%&Z BEHEP - KN2016453
A31H W EXENEARESHEE
5 FE W R IE %934% (20154 :

34%) - HREEERR - EXEHN
ERECZKEFAEEEREEL
R~ EEH R R E A SRR FF ARELR
A EBBEFELRETS I
S BERBEHRRSHRENS
(ERIEE N E/ S EIEIEET k- P
R AR E B SRR B AR
BEERE -pitms - EARESR
A BEENEERBRAERD o
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BR Jﬁmx%ﬁﬁfagﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ

TR EHEE -

ZERRNFFER/ DEAEEERARAT

139



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

o

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #HZ —Z—

B M HRR M T

NE=RA=1+—H

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

o}

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the operations of the Group, and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$31,335,000 (2015:
HK$11,569,000). The directors consider that the Group is
able to mitigate the liquidity risk as the Group has
obtained sufficient fund upon the receipt of proceed from
the global offering of the Company’s shares after the
listing on the Stock Exchange subsequent to 31 March
2016 to support its operation as well as other cash
outflow commitments.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. €M T H &)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. &REREEBZEREE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELER (&)
Liquidity risk analysis TEEE RS
On demand
Weighted or less Total
average than 1t02 2to5 undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years cashflows  amounts
mE  REREE HEN
FHFE  FOR-F 1-2F 255  BRER FRHE
% HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
% TET TET TET TET TAT
31 March 2016 20163 A 31 H
Non-dlrivative financial HrELBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 R E M EN TR - 47,235 - - 47,235 47,235
Bank overdraft BRITHES - 167 - - 167 167
Obligations under financial ~ BAREE(E
leases 2.30 292 46 - 338 330
Borrowings fER 2.75 75,213 4 - 75,257 75,243
122,907 90 - 122,997 122,975
On demand
Weighted orless Total
average than 1t02 2105 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years  cash flows amounts
il RERER BERE
TONE  FOR—F 1-2F -5 BEEN REE
% HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THT FHT T T TR
31 March 2015 201563 H31H
Non-dlerivative financial Tt BEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 R E i ERFUE - 43,505 - - 43,505 43,505
Amount due to a shareholder F&{F— £ i3 778 - 21,730 - - 21,730 21,730
Obligations under financial ~ BAREE(E
leases 2.24 502 305 45 852 820
Borrowings &k 2.34 28,197 821 68 29,086 29,010
93,934 1,126 113 95,173 95,065
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “On demand or less than one
year” time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31
March 2016, the carrying amounts of these borrowings
amounted to HK$74,682,000 (2015: HK$27,376,000).

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the
counterparties will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such borrowings will be repaid within five years after the
end of each reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, details of which are set out in the table
below:

28. €@ T H(»)

b.

TRIRREIE B RBR
(#)

REBESRER (&)
RENE L BRI ()

EMEHAE ST [REREES DR
16 BEARNPRE BEEETA
AERERKEREROMER R
201643 A31H ' WEHRNER
B /74,682,000 Jt(20154F :
27,376,000/ 7C) °

rEE BERBEPHIRRER  EFE
ERZTPRAIBEITERFHN R BHE
FMESKEIEFER - EFRELFER
BRESHRERRREEAR - REHT
RERBHNRTERAREE 7
BAFBHEIINTX

Maturity Analysis — Borrowings subject to a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

A ELN — BERITERFTEABREERRNER

Total

undiscounted
Less than 102 2to 5 cash Carrying
one year years years outflows amounts

St R EE
PR—F 1-2F 2-5% RATHRH fREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET FET
31 March 2016 201643 A31H 37,762 22,775 18,297 78,834 74,682
31 March 2015 201593 A31H 12,113 8,619 8,221 28,953 27,376

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

. TRT A
c. E@MITAMAFE=E

EREERBENATE  HRE—
REZ 2 EERIZUERBESROMN
- hal

BERAEERRNGE M IMREHE
KAFBRSNNECEREERAE

recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial ZEREEEE A TEEE
statements approximate their fair values.
29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. ?Eﬁéé*ﬂgﬁﬂ%
The Group as lessee BEEBAREAMEA
At the end of the year, the Group had contracted for the REFREHR X EEEREBETITEELS
following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable FE BRI T 7 A & R 8 R 2R &K
operating leases which fall due as follows: M :
2016 2015
—E—XREF ZE—AF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 2,413 1,401
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERF(BIEEERE) 766 251
Total st 3,179 1,652

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for a period of one to two years (2015: one to two years) and
rentals are fixed at the time of entering the respective leases.

KEfers BEERESTHAERA
BEMNES - HBEHREFHA—EMF
(20154F - —ZMF) - MBS &M
ENEE -
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29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29, REHERIE @)
(Continued)
The Group as lessor EEERTMEA

Income earned from leasing of machinery during the year is
HK$171,777,000 (2015: HK$161,660,000). Leases are

negotiated on a monthly basis.

At the end of the year, the Group had contracted with

RANFEA - 55 18 PR A S
171,777,000 7T (2015 F : 161,660,000
L) MEBTEEATE -

RBEMR - BEEERZTFITNZIRER

customers for the following future minimum lease payments: EESWOTF :
2016 2015
—E—NE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Within one year —&FNRN 1,191 1,144
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EAREIE
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of FEETOME - BE R
acquisition of property, plant and (EARRGAMBERHR) A
equipment contracted but not BRI
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 1,783 955
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31.

32.

B M HRR T

NFE=HA=+—H

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, deposit placed for a life insurance policy
of HK$2,494,000 (2015: HK$2,437,000) and plant and
machinery of HK$62,254,000 (2015: HK$28,334,000) have
been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings as disclosed in
note 23.

In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance leases are
secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets with
carrying values as disclosed in note 15.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties in which some directors have

31. EEE#H

32.

beneficial interests:

MR2016F3A31H ERREFT R A
2,494,000;‘%73(201% : 2,437,000/ 7T)
R 5 K 14 W% £ 62,254,000 7t (2015 4 -
28,334,000 77T ) B #E IR B (R 4% BR 7O B 5% 23
B BEEEZMERK-

b BREZBEREARTIELHEA
NHEREZERAER HREERE
PRHIEES ©

BAEE T
WIAREEAR) - EEEEETEFHAES
WSS AT AR S

2016 2015
—E-RE “T-RE

Related Related Related

companies companies companies

in which in which in which

Mr. Lau Mr. Lau Ms. Chan Kit

A subsidiary Pong Sing Pong Sing Mui, Lina

ofa has beneficial  hasbeneficial  has beneficial

A shareholder ~ shareholder interest interest interest

IR K E B EE BRigZt

Ry HEEGEZ BAERER  BEEmER

—E2RR Wt A Al B A ) ofeal YN g /NG

HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT THT TET THT FHET

Hiring expenses ERER - 57,221 - - -
Leasing income of e AR

machinery - - 540 479 171

Management fees paid BENEEER - - 196 2,425 -

Operator income BIEBIRA = - - _ 49

Proceeds on disposal HEWE  BER

of property plant and RIEPEIE

equipment - - - 220 -

Purchases BE - 6,068 241 482 -

Sales of parts THHEE 2,598 250 45 2 40

Other service income Het R LA 176 750 - - -

Storage income HERA - 1,611 - - -

Transportation income ~ E&IKA 56 80 - - 106
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32.

33.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

At 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group’s general banking
facilities were secured by unlimited personal guarantee from a
director of the Company.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position and related notes.

The Company’s key management personnel are the directors
and their remunerations are included in the management fees
paid above and emoluments disclosed in note 12.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2015, dividends payments of
HK$3,425,810 and HK$16,574,190 were settled through the
current accounts with related companies and current account
with a shareholder, respectively.
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32.

33.
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BERARNMIZEEEABRES  MKE
FeRE AN NERERRRKE
1245 -
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 34. FEMBLAFHE
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 R2016F3HA31H - ERAIMBARZ

were as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

registered capital

BT -

Equity interests
attributable

to the Group

Principal activities

MEAT S aEff/ B it B BRITREE
R R A EEESERE TEEH
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—AfF
AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings ~ British Virgin US$2 100% - Investment holding
Limited (Note) Islands
AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings ~ HEBRZHE 2ETT REER
Limited (P )

AP Rentals Limited Hong Kong HK$27,378,000 100% 100% Investment holding, trading
and leasing of machinery
and parts, and provision
of operating and other
related services

SRAEEERAA o 27,378,000 REERR - # R T
HERES - URBIER
HoAh 48 B AR 7%

AP Equipment Leasing Macau MOP25,000 100% 100% Leasing of construction

and Engineering Limited machinery

DIEAREAERTE P 25,0002 7T A 2 R

BRAT]
Note: The Company directly holds the equity interest in AP Rentals (BVI) MisF : EARIEEFA AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings

Holdings Limited. The other two subsidiaries shown above are
indirectly held by the Company through AP Rentals (BVI)

Holdings Limited.

Limited 2 AR + LA #8051 E fth 4B B A
A M ANA B3 38 AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings
Limited I #5A ©
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35. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE 35. EHREE

REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 March 2016, written resolutions of all the shareholders of
the Company were passed to approve the matters set out in
paragraph headed “Extraordinary general meeting of our
Shareholders on 17 March 2016” in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus. Simultaneous with the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on 8 April 2016, 685,422,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were issued at par to the
shareholders whose names were on the register of members of
the Company as at the close of business on 17 March 2016 for
capitalisation of HK$685,422 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company and 151,200,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.001 each were issued at HK$0.75 per share for
a total gross proceeds of HK$113,400,000.
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R2016F3A17H BRI 2EBRER
MEMRESR - HOUERREREMHEEM2016
FIA17TARRZRRFRAE] - BAR
AR R 2016 F 4 A8 HAEBE R FT LT A9
@ BF - 685,422,000 % & % [ & 4 0.001 &
T ERIEEE T TR2016 5F3 A 17
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